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Director's Statement

EEHRE

DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or
the “Directors”) of SunCorp Technologies Limited (the
“Company”), | present to you the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of review, the Group continued (i) to
focus in the design, sales and marketing of residential
telephone products under its licence for the Motorola
brand, as the Company is the exclusive licensee for the
Motorola brand for corded and cordless telephones for
residential and office in Europe, the Russian Federation,
Middle East, Africa and Asia (including China, India,
Southeast Asia and Australia); (ii) the processing and
trading of used computer-related components business;
(iii) to provide money lending business; (iv) securities
brokerage and underwriting business and (v) the B2B
cross-border e-commerce and payment business.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's
revenue amounted to approximately HK$350.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 32.8% as
compared with the revenue of approximately HK$263.5
million in 2016. In relation to the Group’s revenue,
approximately 39.8% resulted from sales of telephone
and related products, 12.7% resulted from the processing
and trading of used computer-related components, 4.3%
resulted from interest income earned from money lending
business, 0.5% contributed from brokerage, placing and
underwriting business and 42.7% contributed by B2B
cross-border e-commerce and payment business.

Gross profit from operation for the year under review
was approximately HK$31.8 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 29.7% as compared with the
gross profit of approximately HK$45.1 million for the
corresponding period in 2016. The Group's net loss for
the year was approximately HK$217.1 million, which was
mainly due to the loss on held-for-trading investment of
approximately HK$219.3 million recognized during the
year.
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As at 31 December 2017, the loan portfolio held by
the Group was approximately HK$188.5 million and
interest income earned from money lending business was
approximately HK$15.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

In view of the dynamic change in the market
environment, the Group has previously expanded into
the cross-border e-commerce and payment segment,
which started to grow and perform for the year ended 31
December 2017. We may deploy more resources in this
business segment in the future to capture more market
opportunities as and when appropriate. The Group’s
other business segments include sales and design of
residential cordless telephone and trading of computer
components, money lending business, securities trading
and other financial investment.

In respect of the business for Motorola, it is believed that
the prospects for the activity relating to design, sales and
marketing of telephone products under the Motorola
brand in Europe, the Russian Federation, Middle East,
Africa, US and Asia (including China, India, Southeast
Asia and Australia) will continue to be stable in 2018.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to extend our sincere thanks to our
customers, suppliers and staff for their continued support
and contribution to the Group during the year.

Wang Zhen Dong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEER R

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$350.0 million
which represented an increase of approximately 32.8% as
compared to the corresponding figure for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The gross profit for the year under review was
approximately HK$31.8 million as compared to
approximately HK$45.1 million for the previous year.

During the year, the cross-border e-commerce and
payment business started to grow and contributed a
certain percentage of our revenue. We continue to
be positive at this business segment and may deploy
more resources to capture more market opportunities
as and when appropriate. On the other hand, the
Group continued to focus on the sales and marketing
of residential telephone products under its licence for
the Motorola brand and the processing and trading of
used computer-related components business. In addition,
the financial arm of the Group comprising of securities
brokerage, underwriting business and money lending
business also contributed to the revenue of the Group
during the year. The revenue, the gross profit and net
loss for each business segment for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out as below:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

ipEN S
N REYES

Current ratio
Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash on hand
of approximately HK$85.5 million, net current assets
of approximately HK$423.2 million, total assets of
approximately HK$423.9 million and shareholders’ equity
of approximately HK$369.5 million.

The Group generally financed its operations through
internally-generated cash flows and Shareholders’ equity.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Authorised share capital

As at 31 December 2017, the authorized share capital
of the Company was HK$600,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000,000 Shares of HK$0.0003 each. The
authorised share capital had no change during the year.

Issued share capital

As at 31 December 2017, the number of Shares in
issue of the Company was HK$4,564,719 divided into
15,215,731,320 Shares of HK$0.0003 each. There was
no movement for the number of Shares in issue of the
Company during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEER R

EXCHANGE RATE

Most of sales in the current year were denominated in
United States dollars, whilst the majority of the Group's
expenses were denominated in United States dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Although the Group
currently does not maintain any hedging policy to
hedge against foreign exchange exposure that may arise
from the above transactions, the management team
continuously assesses the foreign currency exposure,
with an aim to minimize the impact of foreign exchange
fluctuation on the Group’s business operations.

RAISING OF FUNDS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company completed the placing on 13 April
2015, and the net proceeds from the placing were
approximately HK$492 million. As at 31 December 2015,
the Company has resolved to change the use of the
unutilized net proceeds of approximately HK$372 million.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 6 March 2015, 13 April 2015 and 31
December 2015.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had utilized
approximately HK$43.7 million for marketing and
promotion to overseas merchants and setting up
offices and marketing terms in the PRC and Europe,
approximately HK$46.8 million for the B2B cross-border
e-commerce and payment business, approximately
HK$295.0 million for securities investment, securities
brokerage and money lending business in Hong Kong,
approximately HK$22.0 million for the repayment
of promissory note issued by the Company and
approximately HK$52.0 million for general working
capital or potential acquisition opportunities.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had unutilized net
proceeds of approximately HK$32.5 million which will
be deployed for the B2B cross-border e-commerce and
payment business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, total market value for
the held-for-trading investments of the Group was
approximately HK$68.7 million (2016: HK$240.5 million).
The Board considers that the investments with market
value accounting for more than 5% of the Group's total
assets as at 31 December 2017 as significant investments.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recognized unrealised fair value loss on held-for-trading
investments of approximately HK$205.1 million (for
the year ended 31 December 2016: HK$38.8 million),
which was mainly attributable to the fair value losses
on investments in GreaterChina Professional Services
Limited (HK stock code: 8193) (the “GreaterChina”),
WLS Holdings Limited (HK stock code: 8021) and QPL
International Holdings Limited (HK Stock code: 243)
of approximately HK$127.4 million, HK$29.0 million
and HK$22.6 million respectively. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group recognised realised
losses on held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$14.1 million (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
gains of approximately HK$4.1 million), which was
mainly attributable to the realised loss on disposal of
GreaterChina of approximately HK$10.3 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEER R

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (continued)

Detail of the top two held-for-trading investments, in
terms of market value as at 31 December 2017 are as
follows:

EERE #)

RR_F—tF+_A=+t—A2
TEMNE MAFEEERE 25
RO

For the year ended
31 December 2017

As at 31 December 2017 HE-E-t%
R=F-t#+t=B=+-H tZA=t+-BL%E
Proportion Unrealised
to the total Proportion fair value
issued share to the total gain/(losses)
capital for assets of the on the
the stocks Group investments
Number of i Market HARE REZ Dividends
shares held BEATRE value EEAE RERLYAE received
Company name CES FiBRHBE aEsth e 2B W&/ (FR) EHRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL FAL
eprint Group Limited eprint EE AR A
(“eprint Group”) ([eprint £@]) 9,604,000 1.75% 23,434 5.52% 5,164 -
China Investment and FERRALBARAT
Finance Group Limited ((HERBE])
("China Investment”) 143,997,600 6.38% 10,080 2.38% (8,083) -

eprint Group and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the provision of printing services and solutions on
advertisement, bound book and stationery to a diversified
customer base in Hong Kong. China Investment and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in securities trading
and investment holding.

Looking forward, the Board believes that the future
performance of the listed investments held by the
Group will be volatile and substantially affected
by overall environment, equity market conditions,
investor sentiment and the business performance and
development of the investee companies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were
no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, namely
Mondial Communications Limited (“MCL"”) and Suncorp
Communications Limited (“SCL") have initially, received
two notices of statutory demands dated 10 March
2011 from a firm of solicitors for and acting on behalf
of a former subsidiary of the Company in liquidation,
demanding payment of HK$91,177,872 due by MCL and
HK$128,785,748 due by SCL to the aforesaid former
subsidiary (the “Claims”). The Company has sought legal
advice and has vigorously defended against the Claims
since then. MCL and SCL received the same statutory
demands again dated 19 July 2011 in relation to the
Claims.

As far as the Directors are aware, the Claims by Suncorp
Industrial Limited (“SIL”) (in liquidation) in both statutory
demands against SCL and MCL related to debts which
have previously been fully written off or impairment have
been made at the books of SCL and MCL at the year
ended 31 December 2007, and accordingly there is no
such debts in the accounts and records of SCL and MCL
at any financial year ended 31 December 2008 with SIL.

By an Order made on 1 June 2011, the Liquidators were
sanctioned to take out legal proceedings in the name and
on behalf of the SIL (in liquidation) against the Company,
SCL and MCL. However, no legal action or winding-up
proceedings had even been taken by the Liquidators
against the Company or SCL or MCL up to the date
hereof.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEER R

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

The Company had disposed of its entire interest in SCL
and MCL in April 2014. Based on the legal advice sought,
disposition of SCL and MCL by the Company would not
affect the Order made by the Court on 1 June 2011.
However, as previously set out, based on legal advice
sought, as the Claims sought have already been fully
set-off, there is no solid legal foundation on the part
of the liquidators of SIL to mount any claim against the
Company.

Save and except the Claims and an unsubstantiated
complaint advanced by the liquidator of SIL against the
Company and its directors concerning the operation of
SIL before its liquidation, as at 31 December 2017, no
member of the Group was engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and there was
no litigation or claim of material importance known to
the Directors to be pending or threatened against any
member of the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group and the Company
do not have any significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Board may exercise its discretion to grant
share options to the executive directors and employees
as an incentive to their contribution to the Group.
During the year under review, no share options had been
granted by the Group to the directors and employees in
accordance with the share option scheme.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).
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Corporate Information
NEIEM

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
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Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.suncorptech.com.hk
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Details of Directors and Chief Executives

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Wang Zhen Dong, aged 38, has over 10 years of
experience in software and media related industry. He
obtained a MBA degree in Innovation Management from
Hosei University, Japan and a Bachelor degree in trading
from Senshu University, Japan. He is currently the general
manager in an e-commerce company in Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr. Wang had
extensive experience in software development, network
application and management experience in the PRC.

Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON, aged 68, is
responsible for the Group’s overall marketing and product
development strategy. He is a fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lu Bei Lin, aged 47, independent non-executive
director of the Company. She obtained her certificate of
completion in Management of Cultural and Arts Affairs
from the Tongji University. Ms. Lu has over 11 years of
experience in the cultural and hospitality industry in the
PRC.
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Details of Directors and Chief Executives

EEREETHAEHE

Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas, aged 40, independent
non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Lee has
extensive experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. He is now the Partner of Lee, Au & Co.
Certified Public Accountant. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Dongwu Cement International
Limited (SEHK stock code: 695), Sino Energy International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Active Group
Holdings Limited) (SEHK stock code: 1096), Inno-Tech
Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 8202) and Shenglong
Splendecor International Limited (SEHK stock code:
8481), all companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee previously worked as an
Assistant Financial Controller in a multinational luxury
brands group and also worked at one of the Big Four
International Accounting Firms. Mr. Lee is a fellow of the
Association Chartered Certified Accountants, a Practising
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Certified Tax Advisor and member of the
Hong Kong Taxation Institute, a Certified Internal Auditor
and member of the Institute of Internal Auditors, a
Certified Information Systems Auditor and member of the
ISACA. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Warwick and a second bachelor's degree
in Chinese Law from the Tsinghua University, Beijing.
In 2016, Mr. Lee obtained a Master Degree of Business
Administration from the University of London in the
United Kingdom.

Man Yuan, aged 30, obtained a Bachelor degree in
Marketing from the Inner Mongolia University of Science
& Technology. Mr. Man was the general manager in an
internet company located in Shenzhen, the PRC during
2013 to May 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Government Report together with annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to high standards of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal control,
transparency, independence and accountability to all
shareholders.

Throughout the financial year of 2017, the Group
had applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the period from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2017; and unless otherwise stated, which in
the opinion of the Board, are not appropriate to follow.

The Company conducts periodic review on its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company can
meet the requirements of the CG Code on an on-going
basis. The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are summarized as below:
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

The Board is mandated with promoting the success of the
Company by providing leadership and supervising control
of the business of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Company has the
following members on the Board:

Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zhen Dong
Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. LEE Ho Yiu, Thomas
Ms. LU Bei Lin
Mr. MAN Yuan

The biographical details of the Directors are set out
on pages 13 to 14 of this Annual Report. Under the
Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have at
least three INEDs, at least one of whom must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The number of
INEDs has met the requirement of the Listing Rules and
represented one-third of the total Board members.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirement of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines. Regular review will be made
on the Board composition to ensure the Company has a
balance of skills, expertise and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)
Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
which has come into effect from 1 April 2012, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials
on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. The
Board will consider on a regular basis whether necessary
changes are needed in respect of the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to identify suitably qualified
candidates if there is such a need. In accordance with
the existing Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”),
every newly appointed Director shall hold office till the
next following general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

According to the Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation at least once every three
years. For the avoidance of doubt, all Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
However, in view of the current nature of the Company,
the Board opines that it is not necessary to appoint a
chairman or chief executive and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to executive Directors, department
heads and various committees.

In this circumstances, the Board considers that the
present practice has already addressed the concerns of
the CG Code in this respect.

Non-Executive Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code,
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term subject to re-election. None of the existing
INEDs are engaged on specific term, and it constituted
a deviation of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.
However all Directors, including INEDs are subject to
retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
at least once every three years under the Bye-laws. In
the circumstances, the Board considers that the present
practice has already addressed the concerns of the CG
Code in this respect.
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Corporate Governance Report

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

During the financial year of 2017 under review, 4 board
meetings were held and the attendance of each Director
at the Board meetings was as follows:

EXRERBE
EFRRRRUREFTHREE

R_E-—LFOBEMBFEE E=
BROTHREH SEFZ2HE
UM

B

TR I

Attendance/
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HER
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Name of Directors: EEnA: RE
Mr. WANG Zhen Dong FIRE LA 4/4
Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON %t & 3/4
Ms. LU Bei Lin B fE R 22 = 4/4
Mr. LEE Ho Yiu, Thomas ETEST A 4/4
Mr. MAN Yuan w Bl 5T A& 4/4

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on
an adhoc basis. The Bye-laws allows Board meetings
to be conducted by means of telephones or other
communications equipment and any resolutions to be
passed by way of written resolutions circulated to and
signed by all Directors from time to time when necessary
unless such as are temporarily unable to act through
ill-health or disability.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE (continued)

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings
(continued)

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board meetings and
reasonable notice for non-regular Board meetings are
given to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them
had an opportunity to attend the meetings. The Company
Secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing
the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are sent in full to
all Directors at least 3 days before the date of the Board
meeting.

After the meeting, draft minutes of the Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comment before
execution and approval. All Board minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and available for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice given by the
Directors. Every Director is entitled to have access to
Board papers and related materials and has access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Board opines that it is not necessary to appoint a
Chairman or Chief Executive and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to Executive Directors, department
heads and various committees.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
for overseeing particular aspect of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established
with clearly defined written terms of reference which
set out the scope and authorities of the respective
committee. The terms of reference are available to
shareholders for inspection on the Company’s website.
Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary,
are circulated to all Board members and the committees
are required to report back to the Board on their decision
and recommendations where appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are:

Audit Committee

Mr. LEE Ho Yiu, Thomas (Chairman)
Ms. LU Bei Lin
Mr. MAN Yuan

Remuneration Committee

Mr. MAN Yuan (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Ho Yiu, Thomas

Nomination Committee

Mr. LEE Ho Yiu, Thomas (Chairman)
Mr. Man Yuan
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an important link between
the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of the audit of the Company. The Audit
Committee was established in March 2000 with written
terms of reference and is currently consists of three
members, of whom all are INEDs.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
appointment of auditors on an annual basis including a
review of the audit scope and the audit fees; ensuring
the objectivity and independence of the auditors,
meeting with the auditors to discuss issues arising from
the final audit and any matters the auditors suggest to
discuss; reviewing the sufficiency and effectiveness of the
risk management and the internal controls; engaging a
professional consultant as the Group's Internal Auditor
to discharge the duties of the Group’s Internal control
and risk management, reviewing the annual and interim
report in accordance with the accounting policies and
practices and relevant accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the legal requirements; serving as a focal
point for communication between other Directors and
the auditors in respect of the duties relating to financial
reporting.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company's policy
when necessary.

The results announcement of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosure have been made.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

During the financial year of 2017 under review, two
committee meetings were held and the attendance of
each committee member at the committee meeting was
as follows:

Name of Committee members ZEENERSR
Mr. LEE Ho Yiu, Thomas (Chairman) THEERE(F/FE)
Ms. LU Bei Lin P I 22 &

Mr. MAN Yuan Bl 5t A

During the committee meetings held in the financial
year of 2017, the Audit Committee performed the work
summarized below:

- Reviewing the financial reports and results
announcement for the following financial period
before submission to the Board for approval:

— for the year ended 31 December 2016

—  for six months ended 30 June 2017

— Reviewing the auditors’ independence and report
recommending to the Board for the re-appointment
of the external auditors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The financial reports and the results announcement of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 have
been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure have been
made.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established for the
purposes of ensuring there are formal and transparent
procedures for setting policies on the remuneration for
the Directors. No Directors and executives can determine
his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
was established in March 2000 with written terms of
reference and is currently consists of two members, of
whom both are INEDs, namely Man Yuan (Chairman) and
Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice when necessary.

One resolution has been passed by the Remuneration
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December
2017.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 1 April
2012 with the written terms in compliance with Code
A.5.2. There are two members in the Nomination
Committee comprising two INEDs, namely Lee Ho
Yiu, Thomas (Chairman) and Man Yuan. The principal
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

One resolution has been passed by the Nomination

Committee during the financial year ended 31 December
2017.
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Corporate Governance Report

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the financial statements of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the applicable laws were
complied with. The Directors believe that they have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgment and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and have ensured the financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis.
The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, are set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 63 to 69.

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. The internal
control system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial and management
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Directors have an acknowledgement that it is
responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board has engaged external
professional party to review the risk management
and internal control systems which were included the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control, to resolve material internal control defects, the
procedure and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information and the purchasing
and payment cycles and procedures of the business.The
Board will review this on an ongoing basis to ensure an
efficient system is in place.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The Board is responsible for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems. The Board must ensure
that the Company establishes and maintains effective
risk management and internal control systems to meet
the objectives and safe guard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group’s overall risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At
the same time, the Group endeavors to identify risks,
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems which
are compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) —
Integrated Framework 2013 principles. They are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures in
order to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy
which sets out the process of identification, evaluation
and management of the principal risks affecting the
business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and
assessing principal risks within its divisions on a
quarterly basis and establishing mitigation plans to
manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control
activities, attending quarterly meetings with each
division to ensure principal risks are properly
managed, and new or changing risks are identified
and documented.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.

The risk management framework, coupled with our
internal controls, ensures the risk associated with our
different business units are effectively controlled in line
with the Group’s risk appetite.

The Group does not have an internal audit department.
However, the Group has conducted an annual review
on whether it is necessary to set up an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s relatively simple
corporate and operation structure, as opposed to
diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, the Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, is directly responsible for risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

The Group engaged an external consultant, CT
Consultants Limited, for internal control and risk
management to conduct review on the internal control
system and risk management of the Group during the
year. The review covers certain procedures on the money
lending business, and make recommendations to the
Group to minimize the default risk on loan receivable. No
significant area of concern that may affect the financial,
operational, compliance, control and risk management of
the Group has been identified.

EXRERERE
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B e E R REREE R HIE ()
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Limited &N £ B85 AP E I E
REBRERE R BBREREZE
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The Group's risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall
responsibility to maintain the adequacies of resources,
staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board concluded that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were in place
and effective.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of
insider information, the Group has adopted a policy on
disclosure of insider information with the aim to ensure
the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality requirement
and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the financial year of 2017, the remuneration paid
and payable to the Company’s external auditors, HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited were set out belows:

BERZE (&)
| B T e 0 AR BR A U EE ()

)ﬂﬂﬂ

AEBEHNRREE RAIEESE
BEEMIEBERAREEKRESBEZ
7 & B o 5% I 2 ] Bt E K SE R PR
ﬂﬁﬁ%khmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%n
EXCBEHFERNTR M
IEW&N%FW+ﬂm%EM&

S EELTBERRBE BES
Aﬁﬁ’$ﬁlakilﬁﬁﬁm
[ 2\ B B IR Jo N BB EE YR I o

EEERMBEEABHEETE A&
EEENEANRHEENBER ER
B ANBTRE BRI EITAEE
BWENER-

SN2 BLED 2 B &=
R-ZZE—LtFUBRFE CHLE
NARRARINEZBEE B SAE
BHARRR ZME &I

Fees paid/

payable to

external

auditors

Bt S

SEZEE 2

Services rendered for the Group mAEERMEZRE 8!

HK$'000

FAET

Audit services BEZIRE 950
Non-audit services EFIZRTE

(Review services) (EBRE) -

Total: #BEt 950
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Sin Fai Cynthia (“Ms. Wong") was the
company secretary of the Company. She is responsible to
the Board for ensuring the board procedures are followed
and that the Board is briefed on legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments.

Up to the date of this report, Ms. Wong has undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code"”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. Based on specific enquiry of all the Directors,
the Directors have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the financial year
of 2017.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders and, in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with
shareholders and encourage their participation in such
meetings.

At least twenty (20) clear business days’ notice for annual
general meeting and at least ten (10) clear business
days’ notice for all other general meetings are given to
shareholders of the Company before the meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Details of poll voting procedures will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings and any questions from
shareholders regarding the voting by way of poll will be
answered. Poll results will be posted on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at the date of
the conclusion of the general meeting.

To promote communication, the Company maintains
website at www.suncorptech.com.hk where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and
other information are posted.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to
the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no
significant change in the Company’s memorandum of
association and bye-laws.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s
interest and rights, separate resolutions are proposed
at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions put
forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results
will be posted on the SEHK website and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.
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RIGHT TO CONVENE SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Special general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company or
by such shareholders who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionists”) (as the case may be) pursuant to
Article 58 of the Bye-Laws. Such requisition must state
the object of business to be transacted at the meeting
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company or the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in such Bye-Laws for convening a
special general meeting. Shareholders may put forward
proposals at general meeting of the Company by sending
the same to the Company at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Zhen Dong
Executive Director

27 March 2018
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BACKGROUND

This report covers the Group's overall performance in
two subject areas namely, Environmental and Social
of the business operations in Hong Kong and the
PRC office from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017 (“2017" or “the year”), unless otherwise
stated.

The report has pursuant to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("HKEX ESG
Reporting Guide”) published in December 2015.

During the year, the Group committed to a high
standard of corporate social responsibility and
strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations
reporting.

THE GROUP'’S SUSTAINABILITY VISION

Vision on Environmental, Social, and
Governance

As sustainability is essential to the Group’s culture
values, it commits to sustainable development by
investing in the economic, social and environmental
well-being into their business decision-making. In
order to maintain a quality standard of life for both
the present and future generations, the Group also
promotes environmental protection, makes positive
contribution and creates long-term value in the
communities through engaging in various charitable
events and workshops.

During the year, the Group committed to a high
standard of corporate social responsibility and
strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations
reporting.
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The table underneath showed aspects on the ESG TRINRE T HOERE g
Guide to be assessed and those ESG issues were KERESIBAALRHEARNEE

determined to be material to the Group.

ESG Aspects as set forth in ESG Guide
BRI HERERESIMRAZRER
HEREREE

(A) Environmental
(A) BE
A1 Emissions
A1 HERR
A2 Use of Resources
A2 BIRER
A3 Environment and Natural Resources
A3 IRIFERKRAER

(B) Social
(B) #E&
B1 Employment and Labour Practices
Bl BIEEGIER
B2 Health and Safety
B2 @i e
B3 Development and Training
B3 #E KIEH
B4 Labour Standards
B4 T8
B5 Supply Chain Management
B5 HEEEIE
B6 Product Responsibility
B6 EmAIE
B7 Anti-corruption
B7 &S
B8 Community Involvement
B8 t#EZH

BEZNRE -t kEAR
S8

Material ESG issues for the Group
HASEBEENRE HERERSE

Electricity consumption
BIHRE
Use of energy

BEIR £

Labour practices

BITER

Workplace health and safety

TIESMOERERZ S

Employee development and training

BB #& R NIET

Anti-child and forced labour

PrIEET Ko T

Supply chain management

HEEER

Product responsibility

EmEE

Anti-corruption, fraud prevention and
anti-money laundering

RES B IEBEF R R EE

Community programs, employee volunteering
and donation

HERIEE - B 8 HERIRE KIBK

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &g

33



34

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEMERRE

Environmental

The Group considers environmental protection
an essential component of sustainable and
responsible business. The Group strive to
minimise negative impact to the environment
through optimising the use of natural
resources and encouraging its clients, business
partners and the wider community to embrace
environmental stewardship. In view that the
core business activities of the Group are sales
and marketing of residential telephone products
under its license for the Motorola brand and
trading of used computer-related components
business, securities brokerage and underwriting
business, money lending business and B2B
cross-border e-commerce and payment business,
the Group have narrowed down to the following
key areas where it should exert the effort on:

e Usage of resources from the operations;

e Energy consumption; and

e Indoor environmental quality.
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The Current Environmental Policies

The Group’s main task is to measure and report
the efforts in reducing carbon footprints,
promote waste reduction at source, enhance
its waste disposal management and set targets
on environmental performance. To minimise the
environmental impacts concerning the activities,
products and services, the Group will:

e comply with applicable legal and other
requirements which relate to the Group's
environmental aspects, and to which the
Group subscribes;

e identify environmental impacts associated
with the operations and set the targets
to reduce stress on the environment in
consideration of social expectations;

e prevent pollution, reduce waste and
minimise the consumption of resources from
all daily operations and actively promote
recycle, reuse and replace;

e educate, train and motivate employees to
develop a social viewpoint that enables
them to conduct business activities in an
environmentally responsible manner.

RIE-HEMERRSE
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AT

Emissions Data from Gaseous Fuel
Consumption

Since the primary businesses of the Group
are sales of consumer goods and provision
of financial services that its employees
mostly work in offices. The direct impact to
the environment is immaterial with relatively
low energy, power and water consumption
and the Group did not generate hazardous
waste. Thus, the main contributor to the
Group’s carbon footprint was the indirect
greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions from
electricity consumption, which is mainly
attributed to the use of lighting system,
air-conditioning and office equipment.

As part of the efforts to minimise the impact
to the environment, the Group applies
energy saving measures in the workplace
including installation of an energy-saving
lighting system, setting optimal temperature
on the air-conditioning, and switching off
the lighting and air-conditioning after office
hours.

There were no non-compliance cases noted
in relation to environmental laws and
regulations for the year.
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a) Emissions data from gaseous fuel a) REMEDEREZHE
consumption WE IR
i) For liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG"): N BRI AHER
(&1 B &
£1):

Key performance indicator (“KPI")

ERERER ((BREMEEL])
%

increase/
2017 2016  Unit (decrease)
wm,/
(H2)
—E-tF ZEB-XF EBf Bl
NOx REY 2,705,168 3,522,025 kg/million (23%)
MJ of gas
Tr/BEK
SOx ety 13,526 18,344 kg/million (26%)
MJ of gas
Tr/BEK
EHERE
Total Mt 2,718,694 3,540,369  kg/million (23%)
MJ of gas
Tn/BEk
TERE
b) Since the Company did not have motor b) BRARARFN
vehicle during the year, therefore no I &R E B
emissions data from vehicle applied. BmIERAE ZHEK
HE -
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During the year, there was 12,666kg (2016:
18,575kg) of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide) emitted from
the Group's operation.

Indirect emission is mainly raised from
electricity consumption while the other
indirect emission came from business
air travel. Total floor area coverage for
the Group was 1,256m? in 2017 (2016:
1,402m?) The annual emission intensity was
10.08 KgCO,e/m? (2016: 13.25 KgCO,e/m?).
The decrease was mainly due to efficient
policy control implemented by the Group.
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A1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emission AL B ERIEHEW
KPI
BRENERZ

%

increase/

2017 2016  Unit (decrease)

# 0,/

(R2)

ZE—+5F ZE-RE EBE{ Batt

Scope 1 EEN N/A N/A  Kg -
Direct Emission BB & A TEA Tn

Scope 2 EiE?2 11,615 15,752  Kg (26%)
Indirect Emission  E#EHEH T

Scope 3 EE3 1,051 2,823  Kg (63%)
Other indirect Hip &8 TR

Emission i

Total et 12,666 18,575 Kg (32%)
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A1.3 Non-hazardous Waste

A2.1

The Group generated no hazardous waste
in its operation. Non-hazardous waste from
the Group’s operations was mainly office
paper but the management of the Group
believed that the wastage of this aspect was
insignificant.

Use of resource

The Group’'s commitment to protect
the environment is well reflected by its
continuous efforts in promoting green
measures and awareness in all business
practices and contribute to the sustainable
development of the environment. The
Group is committed to a series of resource
procedures to fully utilise and recycle
resources in the daily business operations.
For instance, the Group advocates
employees to reduce the usage of papers
by encouraging internet communication,
assessing the necessity of printing, applying
duplex printing, and reusing any single-sided
printed papers where appropriate.

Apart from that, environmental-friendly
suppliers have been its preference when
procuring office stationery, the brand
of paper used is Programme for the
Endorsement of Forest Certification
("PEFC") certified which means the product
is from sustainably managed forests,
recycled and controlled resources.
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A3 Environmental and Natural Resources A3 RIEMKBAER

Air Quality

The Group’'s water consumption was
minimal, hence good indoor air quality
always has been top of the priorities.
Pollutants such as ozone produced by
photocopiers, stale air drawn in from
outside through poorly located fresh air
inlets and bacteria that entered the office
or accumulated in the ventilation system
as a result of poor maintenance can be
accumulated indoors if the design, operation
and maintenance are improper.

To improve indoor air quality, a range of
air pollution emission measures have been
implemented by the Group as follows:

e Ensure air inlets are away from any
source of pollutants and sufficient
ventilation systems;

e  Test the level of dust and micro-organism
in the air;

e (Clean all air units regularly (e.g. air
inlets, air outlets and filters); and

e Perform regular maintenance on carpet
and furniture upholstery.

Under the amendment of the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance in 2008 by the
Environmental Protection Department, the
Group has been placing more efforts in
reducing the emission levels in the operation
office.
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Social

Being a responsible business and employer,
the Group are committed to consistently
looking for ways to meet the corporate social
responsibilities. The Group focuses on its staff,
environment and community as well as its
business partners.

B1. Employment and Labour Practices

The Group advocates a community spirit
that thrives on mutual respect and equal
opportunities. The Group comply strictly
to equal opportunities legislation include
but not limited to the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, Race Discrimination Ordinance,
Disability Discrimination Ordinance and
Family Status Discrimination Ordinance. To
ensure diversity and equality, the selection
process is non-discriminatory and is solely
based on the employees’ performance,
experience and skills. Employees are also
encouraged to discuss their targets in job
advancement and career development with
their senior management.

RIE-HEMERRSE
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The Employment of Children Regulations
and Employment of Young Persons (Industry)
Regulations made under the Employment
Ordinance prohibits all employers engaging
child and forced labour in the workforce
and regulate the hours of work and general
conditions of employment of young persons
in industrial undertakings. With compliance
to relevant laws and regulations, the Group
did not and will not engage in any forced or
child labour. The Staff Code of Conduct is
enclosed in the Compliance Manual, which
is readily accessible to all employees.

To attract, develop and retain qualified
employees, the Group is committed
to offering professional development
opportunities and a healthy working
environment for all employees. Salaries
and wage rates are usually subjected
to an annual review that are based on
performance appraisals and other relevant
factors. The Group also provide equal
opportunities for all employees along with
competitive remuneration and strongly
encourage internal promotion and a variety
of job opportunities is offered to the existing
staff when it is best suited.

The Group’s remuneration policies are
formulated on the performance of
employees with reference to the market
condition. For the purpose of ensuring there
are formal and transparent procedures for
setting policies on the remuneration for the
Directors, the Remuneration Committee was
established.
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The Group also reviews the compensation
and benefits programmes regularly to ensure
its compensation and benefits packages
remain competitive. Over the years, the
Group has introduced a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) that the
Board may exercise its discretion to grant
share options to Directors and employees
as an incentive to their contribution to
the Group. As at 31 December 2017, the
number of shares in respect of which share
options could be exercisable under the
terms of the Share Option Scheme was
1,889,364,600 (2016: 1,853,860,600)
shares, representing approximately 12.42%
(2016:12.18%) the total shares of the Group
on the date of issue.

There were no non-compliance cases noted
in relation to employment and labour
standards laws and regulations for the year.

Staff Composition

As at 31 December 2017, the Group
employed a total of 31 (2016: 28) staff,
including operational office, sales and
marketing, and finance division. All staff
members are allocated in Hong Kong,
Beijing, Shanghai and United Kingdom.
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a)

Employee’s Age and Gender Distribution

Age Group
FiR4 Bl

0-15
16-18
18 - 30
31 -45
46 - 60
=61/>61
Total

By gender
BERE D

Under employment

0-15
16-18

18 -30
31-45
46 - 60
=61/>61
st

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #fERIEHR A F

a)
2017
—E—tF
Male Female
E:R a3
0% 0%
0% 0%
16% 10%
29% 16%
19% 6%
3% 0%
68% 32%
2017
—E—+tf
Male Female
B i
68% 32%

& B F & RIERI D

{id

2016
AN
Male Female
S pegi
0% 0%
0% 0%
18% 4%
32% 18%
18% 4%
7% 0%
75% 25%
2016
ZT—RF
Male Female
S pegid
75% 25%
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b) Turnover Rate by Age Group and b) IRF#48 B KX 1% Rl

Gender E AP NES

2017 2016

—E—tF ZT-RF

Age Group Male Female Male Female
FHAER B M S g
0-15 0-15 0% 0% 0% 0%
16-18 16-18 0% 0% 0% 0%
18 - 30 18 - 30 0% 0% 0% 3%
31 -45 31-45 3% 0% 7% 0%
46 - 60 46 - 60 0% 0% 0% 0%
=61/>61 =61/>61 3% 0% 0% 0%
Total it 6% 0% 7% 3%

2017 2016

—E-tF —E-RF
By gender Male Female Male Female
R R & 2 B pogid CoL pegid
Resigned staff BEET 100% 0% 67% 33%
The Group will continue to provide a REBEKEERRE
well-structured and caring environment BRHEBRIER
to employees to raise their sense of HHBENEREER:
belonging and work efficiency in the NiREEEAEE
Group. R B R & TERK
K o
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B2. Employee Health and Safety B2. EEREMZE

Owing to the clerical nature of the Group's
businesses, the Group’'s working area was
mainly based at office. Though the office
environment is relatively comfortable, it is
not entirely freed from safety and health
risks.

The Group have recognised the importance
of maintaining a safe, effective and
congenial work environment and policies,
to provide sufficient protection to its
staff. Hence, the Group have put various
occupational health and safety measures in
place and regularly perform check on the
work environment and staff facilities. For
example, it has put ergonomic principles
into the consideration when designing the
office workstation to accommodate the
body features and limitations of the users.

There were no non-compliance cases noted
in relation to health and safety laws and
regulations during the year.
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a) Occupational Health and Safety Data a) BERFRHEZTEZH
&
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
Health and Safety Male Female Male Female
REHZZ B pog:3 Co) pegi
Number of work-related & T {Ef3 (%
fatalities LT AE 0% 0% 0% 0%
Lost days due to AIGmEX
work injury B TIERH 0% 0% 0% 0%

B3. Development and Training B3. #FERIF

The Group understood that human capital
has played a substantial part of the
business. As a listed corporation, the Group
are mindful of the continuous development
of the regulatory environment and have
established a practice in gathering the
changes of regulations and ensuring its
Directors, responsible officers, licensed
representatives and other employees attend
necessary training programmes so they are
equipped to perform their duties. Pursuant
to the requirement of Listing Rules, all
Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending
training courses or reading relevant
material relating to corporate governance
and regulations to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. Besides, the
continuous professional training required
have been taken by relevant staff to update
their knowledge and skills to maintain their
professional competence to remain fit and
proper.
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B4.

During the year, Directors and staff have
attended a series of training programmes.

Labour Standard

No child or forced labour was employed
in the Group’'s operations during the
year which was in compliance with the
Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the
Laws of Hong Kong in terms of employment
management.

The Group lists specific requirements on
advertisement to hire the most suitable
candidate. All resume, original identification
card, original certificate should be first
checked by human resources (“HR")
department during interview. HR department
also contacts candidate’s preceded employer
for reference.

Equal opportunities are given to employees
in respect of recruitment, training and
development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. The employees
are not discriminated against or deprived of
such opportunities on the basis of gender,
ethnic background, religion, race, sexual
orientation, age, marital status, family
status, retirement, disability, pregnancy
or any other discrimination prohibited by
applicable law. The Group also appreciates
the importance of cultural diversity in the
development of the Group, and employs
employees in a wide range of ages, genders,
and ethnicities.

48 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ¥ifERliBR AT

B4.

FAN-BEERBETIEWH
f&E— RI M HIRR o

44 T 24

g

FR AKEMNEEY
R A E I okok b4
T HEREEMS -
HIaBRB AN FESTE
CERIEB) -

AEEEESAILA
BERNUHEERAEA
EB-TBARBER &0
BERREBEEERNER
EEERFAANER
MiaE e NS EIRED IR
SR EERRENET
A2 o

AREBRAE Fl &
TR TEETARS
MR EETET
FERE - AEETE
ERMER BRE=
=¥ -EE EmME-
FEBRMNR RE
RS RIR BRI B2
SXE AR ZE IR
H Aty 1548 T AR 18 8 5
HEREFEHRE X
SERAB X EZ T
EREEERTINHNEER
M IR B AR &
MR MR EE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEMERRE

In particular, the Group adopted Board
Diversity function under which the Board
composition includes members from
different skills, industry knowledge,
experience, education, background and
other qualities without discrimination.

B5. Supply Chain Management

To comply with the laws and regulations,
the Group has established stringent internal
controls to procuring goods and materials
through fair and unbiased tender process.
The selection of subcontractors and suppliers
will be based on meeting specifications and
standards, product and service quality as
well as service support.

The Group carefully selects qualified
suppliers to ensure that the entire
production process is in line with its
standards and rules. The Group not only
requests its new suppliers to submit a review
of all relevant documents, but conducts
rigorous check to assess their reliability. The
Group practices are to carry out inspections
and assessments regularly as a review
of suppliers’ standards, and terminate
collaboration with unqualified suppliers.
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B6. Product Responsibility B6. Emm & IT

The Group recognises that good
customer and after-sales services are the
key influential factors to success and
sustainability. In order to cater for prompt
response in meeting with the needs of its
customers, the Group has set up a range of
communication channels among different
business units to handle customers’ queries
efficiently.

The Group emphasises the importance of
protecting and safe-guarding its customers’
privacy, especially for money lenders’
information. Thereby, the Group would be
cautious upon the collection, procession
and usage of customers’ personal data in
order to comply with the provisions of the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

There were no non-compliance cases noted
in relation to data privacy related laws and
regulations during the year.
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B7. Anti-corruption B7. RE)5

The Group promotes integrity and prevents
unethical pursuits. Employees are reminded
to avoid situation that may lead to or
involve any conflict of interest. Staff are
prohibited to request, receive or accept any
forms of benefit from any persons, company
or organisation which have business
transactions with the Group.

To effectively monitor market misconduct
like staff dealing, money laundering and
insider trading, the Group has set up a series
of policies and enclosed in the Compliance
Manual, which are readily accessible to all
employees.

In particular, the Group have established
a Code of Conduct and stipulated in the
Compliance Manual. The Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”) has published
Guidance Notes which summarise what
money laundering and terrorist financing
are and what the legislation requires. The
Guidance Notes also explain the procedures
of internal control which the SFC expects to
be followed by registered person in a range
of areas. The management does not tolerate
corruption, bribery, extortion, money
laundering and other fraudulent activities
in connection with any of the business
operations.
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BS.

Additionally, the Group has implemented an
effective whistle blowing policy and provided
separate channels for the reporting of any
suspected business irregularities, frauds and
corruptions. During the year, no incident of
corruption was reported within the Group.

There was no non-compliance in relation to
corruption or money laundering related laws
and regulations during the year.

Community Involvement

During the year, the Group made
contributions to Médecins Sans Frontieres
(# B R % 4 ) and Po Leung Kuk by
supporting its charity events. In order to
be a more responsible business and create
a better living environment for the local
community, the Group is committed to
continuously providing sponsorships and
donations to various charitable organisations
in the coming years.
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and
is also engaged in treasury functions. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the sales and marketing of
residential telephone products under its licence for the
Motorola brand, and the processing and trading of used
computer-related components such as integrated circuit
chips, hard-disk and motherboards from developed
countries to developing countries. During the year of
review, the Group also engaged in providing money
lending business; securities brokerage and underwriting
business and the B2B cross-border e-commerce and
payment business.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 70.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2017, the Group had an increase of
approximately 32.8% of revenue as compared to the
corresponding figure for 2016. Information relating to
the financial performance and fair review of the Group
business is set out in the "Director’s Statement section”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis section” of
this annual report.

In January 2016, the Group has set up a brokerage firm
with license to carry out Type 1 (Dealing in Securities)
regulated activities and those new subsidiaries of the
Group has been engaging in securities brokerage and also
intended to engage in other financial businesses such as
money lending and margin financing. In addition, in view
of the changes in the market environment, the Group has
shifted its business focus from B2C to B2B cross-border
e-commerce and payment business.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the
requirements under the Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622 of the laws of Hong Kong, the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong for, among other
things, the disclosure of information and corporate
governance, and the Group has adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

A discussion on the Group’s prospects is provided in
the Director’s statement on pages 2 to 3 of the annual
report. Description of principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group is facing is provide in this corporate
governance report on pages 25 to 26 of the annual
report while the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group,
relationships with its key stakeholders and environmental
policies are contained in the corporate governance report
and environmental, social and governance report on
pages 15 to 52 respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past financial years is set out on page 180.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 66% of the revenue of
the Group and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 39% of the revenue of the Group while
the five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 92% of the purchases of the Group and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 42% of
the purchases of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

(continued)

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate
of a Director (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's
largest customer or the largest supplier.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent Nil on leasehold
improvement, furniture, fixtures and equipment. Details
of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WANG Zhen Dong
Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. LU Bei Lin
Mr. LEE Ho Yiu, Thomas
Mr. MAN Yuan
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Clauses 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-Paton
and Ms. Lu Bei Lin will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each of the Director is the period
from the date of last re-election or last appointment
up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's Byelaws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short
positions of the Directors, chief executive and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as
follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERFETHRAEBZRGE
INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) = (%)
Long Position HE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0003 each of the Company 7N 2\ &] & % E] (60.0003)& T = &
AR
No. of
underlying
shares held
in options
granted under
the Share Percentage

Option Scheme of the issued
BB share capital of
HESTEIRYE  the Company

No. of pd -3 NN
Name of directors shares held mEEZ 2B TRA
EEnA RO EE HERGOEE ZEDH
Wang Zhen Dong
FHRE - 126,800,000 0.83
Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON 2,500,780 20,000,000 0.15
Note: it -

1. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 1. ZBREASLEDIREBEARARC-E

the Company’s issued share capital of 15,215,731,320 as —tFTA=T—HZBEEITR
at 31 December 2017. 715,215,731,3200 51 & -
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 4 May 2012, a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by shareholders at the
annual general meeting, under which the Directors may,
at their discretion, grant share options to eligible persons
including Directors, employees and consultants to
subscribe share in the Company. The Board had granted
to eligible grantees the share options to subscribe
for 156,631,500 ordinary shares of HK$0.0003 each
on 7 October 2013 under the Share Option Scheme.
On 10 December 2014, the Board had granted to
eligible grantees the share options to subscribe for
1,268,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0003 each
under the Share Option Scheme. On 1 September 2016,
the Board had granted to eligible grantees the share
options to subscribe for 1,510,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.0003 each under the Share Option Scheme.

At 31 December 2017, the number of shares in respect
of which share options could be exercisable under the
terms of the Share Option Scheme was 1,889,364,600
shares, representing approximately 12.42% the shares of
the Company in issue at that date. All share options are
currently held by directors, employees and consultants of
the Group, and there is no movement in the Company’s
share options held by the directors, employees and
consultants during the year.

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, save as disclosed below, the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group.

Name of shareholder

with over 5%

shareholding

HERBS% REZRRES /48

Zhongrong International Trust Co. Ltd.

FRERETEERAR

Orchid Touch Limited (Note 2) (##2)
So Ka Yan (Note 2)

FE (Hz2)

Cloud Dynasty (Macau) Limited
(Note 3) (f1i23)

Chan Sin Ying (Note 3)
BRE& (f:23)

Sung Kwan Wun

REE

Eugene Finance International Limited

(Note 4) (ffz£4)

Xiao Lili (Note 4)
HELR (Hiit4)

Li Ronghua

Capacity
L)

Controlled Company's Interest
REH AR R

Controlled Company's Interest
REH AR R

Beneficial Owner
EREAA

Controlled Company's Interest
REH AR R

Beneficial Owner
EaEAA

Beneficial Owner
EaEAA

Controlled Company's Interest
REH AR R

Beneficial Owner
EREAA

Beneficial Owner
EaEAA

Nature of
Interest

L 2331

Corporate Interest
NRER

Corporate Interest
NEER

Beneficial Interest
EnER

Corporate Interest
NEER

Beneficial Interest
EnER

Beneficial Interest
EnER

Corporate Interest
NEER

Beneficial Interest
EnER

Beneficial Interest
EnER

Directors’ Report
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BRTXHEEEN RARAESR
REZTBABRA R-_T—+
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Ba g B MEREREZ KBS K
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Percentage
of the

issued share
capital of the

Company
(Note 1)
Long or Number of  EARATEE
short position shares REZERL
HRIKE RBEE (W)
Long Position 898,214,688 5.90%
HE
Long Position 904,930,000 5.95%
HE
Long Position 904,930,000 5.95%
HE
Long Position 1,000,000,000 6.57%
HE
Long Position 1,000,000,000 6.57%
HE
Long Position 1,016,370,000 6.68%
HE
Long Position 1,300,000,000 8.54%
HE
Long Position 1,300,000,000 8.54%
HE
Long Position 1,300,000,000 8.54%

HE
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EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS FTERRZ2RODER (&)
IN SHARES (continued)
Notes: Bt -

1.

The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of
the Company’s issued share capital of 15,215,731,320.

ZREADLDIREAQARZ B %
1TR%ZK15,215,731,320/R 5T & -

2. Orchid Touch Limited (“Orchid Touch”) is directly Orchid Touch Limited ([Orchid
interested in 904,930,000 shares in the Company. Orchid Touch |) B # # 5904,930,000%
Touch is wholly owned by So Ka Yan. So Ka Yan is QB PN 2 #E 5 > Orchid Touch
therefore deemed to be interested in 904,930,000 shares MM E2ERB -Eit 85
in the Company. 18 A 14904,930,000% A& 2 & %

DR ER -

3. Cloud Dynasty (Macau) Limited (“Cloud Dynasty”) is Cloud Dynasty (Macau) Limited
directly interested in 1,000,000,000 shares in the Company. ([Cloud Dynasty | ) EZ %A
Cloud Dynasty is wholly owned by Chan Sin Ying. Chan Sin 1,000,000,000/% &~ 2 &) % 17
Ying is therefore deemed to be interested in 1,000,000,000 #z5° Cloud Dynasty B fR{E & 2
shares in the Company. EHA - AL BRELERAR

1,000,000,000/% A~ 2 A iR 19 A
xS o
4.  Eugene Finance International Limited (“Eugene Finance”) Eugene Finance International

is directly interested in 1,300,000,000 shares in the
Company. Eugene Finance is wholly owned by Xiao
Lili. Xiao Lili is therefore deemed to be interested in
1,300,000,000 shares in the Company.

Limited ([Eugene Finance |) &
# ¥ 51,300,000,0008% A8 A & AR 15
2 & % ° Eugene Finance A ¥ &L I
2EBB-AU HREMNER AR

1,300,000,000/& &~ R~ &I (D R A
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF EENEARGHZESR
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director HEMWMBARMEIT ZEMERX
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, BESEESHEREEAERZ
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the BH o

year.

REFERIEFEARTFAERE NQE K
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserve available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2017. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, a Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus, if: (a) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (b) the realisable value of the Company's assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The emoluments of the Directors are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
which are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITOR

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company for the
subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Zhen Dong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Bl #F #3645 5% %4 RN

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
SunCorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 70 to 179, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements sections of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

BARETEE

AREBFASTHESREBERMNERH
B RMRSEARERS T HEHRER
MEFRAEEMNER - ELER
EERMBFFEBRAMBERENK
HEABERBETREEN -RMATE
BELEREHEFER

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

RRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBFTNNEERRESNSE

Revenue Recognition from trading of telephones and related products and used

computer-related components

EEZREBERUAR-FEMEHAHES 2 UAER

Refer to Notes 3 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

B2V BRRMEIRT -

The Group recognised revenue from trading
of telephones and related products and used
computer-related components when the
transactions can be measured reliably, and
it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow
to the Group, which is dependent on the
completion of the transaction and may require
management judgment. Revenue from trading
of telephones and related products and used
computer-related components recognised in
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group was approximately HK$183,640,000,
which considered to be significant.
EEERXGRAISEFERERZHHE KR
MERAEAA BEEERERKREEHE LA
BEMAR-_FEREBETES ZWA - H
BURMAZ G e M Pl ae T Z &8 12 @ 1F H #I -
B BEEBEGEAMBHRERAERZEFENEH
EmUAR—_FEREBEHTE S 2WANR
183,640,000/ 7L W R BT REK

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #fERIEHR A F

We selected samples of trading of telephones
and related products and used computer-related
components transactions. Our procedures in
relation to these transactions included:
BHEENEEMABER AR —_FEKEHESA
HESEM -BRMEBAZZERSIZEFBRE:

e  Obtaining evidence regarding the completion
of sales transactions;
e MGABTKEERHZRE:

e Reviewing the signed sales contracts;
s EHMERBHESL:

e Reconciling the monetary amounts to the
signed sales contracts; and

e HERSHECEFHESONYUER X

e Agreeing the payments from customers to
the bank statements.
e RAERTHEEBEZEPHR-

We found that the amount and timing of the
revenue recorded were supported by the available
evidence.

BPER AEFRAZERLEEARERSR
X e



Key audit matter

BARETER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNNEERRETSE

Impalrment assessment on loans and trade receivables

FER B 7 R BN E 5 R B E 7P 1

Refer to Notes 3, 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

E2MEA BB RANES  18R19 -

The Group has loan receivables of
approximately HK$188,460,000 and trade
receivables of approximately HK$19,214,000.
Management judgement is required in
assessing and determining the recoverability of
loans and trade receivables and adequacy of
allowance made.
EEENEBREFRIEBRESERDAIBL
188,460, ooo,%n:xiiﬁw 214 oooﬁ@ém fEFFE

&%EFW 5 3 R B U 55 B ) A Ui (Bl 4 R
Pratie = ﬁﬁﬁi’ﬂ;ﬁﬁﬁl‘{’ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂ

The judgement mainly includes estimating
and evaluating expected future receipts from
customers based on past payment trend, age
of the debtors, knowledge of the customers’
businesses and financial condition.
ZAHTFECRRBEBENTBE BKKE
fRie WP EBMT AR T BRI &
AHERE R PR TE R RUA -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on loans and trade
receivables included:
BMEHEEEEHEKRERREKRE HRIETT
WA G ZIEFEE:

Discussing the Group's procedures on credit
limits and credit periods given to customers
with the management;

HEREWm ESEERTEFEERBL
EEHZEF:

Evaluating the management’s impairment

assessment of loans and trade receivables; \

EEEEE%@WEW&@WE%%ﬁZH
SR

Assessing, validating and discussing with the
management and evaluating their assessment
on the recoverability of the outstanding
debts and the adequacy of allowance made
based on the loans and trade receivables
ageing analysis, collections subsequent to the
end of the reporting period, past collection
history and trend analysis and knowledge
of the businesses, with focus on long
outstanding debts and debts which are past
due but not impaired; and

EIREHETAME RE LR WIRIEE
%A%&F%T%Eﬂm #“ﬁ'ﬁ%%

wE
oM %
il
fil
T
S
e

&

Checking on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of information included in the
impairment assessment of loans and trade
receivables.
BERMERE RERKRERLERE S K
TOR BRI PT R Aﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁo

We consider the management conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.

AR

o B IR B Y 530 B AT PR AR — o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Wong Sze Wai, Basilia.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: PO5806

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018

%8 3L 1% S B ¥R &

REMERIN RMEEZZES
ABETAENESRE BSRERZH
EXRERBAET BREAMER
o 38Rl H R A R O (R R o

HPMERAEZZESRENR &
PRMETEBERBLIENHERE
XERER ARMPIERA AR
EEMERSEFERFBILIEN
FRTEBEMEMEER  AREER
B ST » AR RERD #E 5

HEEZZEGBBNERT R
PimEE WL EIRH AN H R A B 15
BEANBEARRER EAMBEKEH
REFFFH - BLMEZHEA RS T
WL ELER BRIDERER A
MARBBEELESH AN BRF
ROBRT mREGEBRHERM
BERBBRETREXNNBEERR
BREENARME  BIFHFIRE
TRERSHEBZFR

HERBIZHERE 2ETRAB

ExRERE-

RESTHMEBRMARAA

HEFEEZHI PO5806

58 T \F=A=-++tH

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 & 69



70

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeEEkEMEEWREE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-BLFE

Revenue
Costs of sales

Gross profit
Other income and gains

Distribution and selling expenses

Operating expenses
Unrealised loss on
held-for-trading investments
Realised (loss)/gain on
held-for-trading investments
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive

(loss)/income
Items that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale investments

— Change in fair value

— Reclassification adjustment
for the fair value changed

included in profit or loss upon
disposal of available-for-sale

investments
Exchange differences on

translating foreign operations

— Exchange gain/(loss) arising
during the year

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

Loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Total comprehensive loss for
the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Loss per share (HK cents)
— Basic

— Diluted
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SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #fERIEHR A F

Note
b

12

10

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
350,043 263,523
(318,290) (218,370)
31,753 45,153
11,742 11,880
(7,915) (22,631)
(32,816) (51,853)
(205,118) (38,809)
(14,147) 4,052
(86) (14)
(216,587) (52,222)
(497) (130)
(217,084) (52,352)
- 7,118
(7,118) -
135 (476)
(6,983) 6,642
(224,067) (45,710)
(217,084) (52,352)
(224,067) (45,710)
(1.43) (0.34)
(1.43) (0.34)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BRI R

At 31 December 2017 R=—Z—tH+=H=+—H

2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 2 FERT FETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment N 15 498 2,456
Available-for-sale investments AtHERE 16 - 14,140
Deposits o 17 205 205
703 16,801
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables W E SRR R
H fth f& 5K IR 18 65,150 90,802
Loan receivables e E X 19 188,460 169,066
Bill receivable discounted with MEZEBREZ
full recourse JE U BE 3R = 1 20 — 941
Held-for-trading investments HIEEERE 21 68,661 240,486
Cash and bank balances Re MRTERS
- Segregated accounts -BIRP 22 15,390 11,453
— House accounts -BERF 22 85,533 125,842
423,194 638,590
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables ERE ZER R
Lty FE N 50R 23 52,181 60,530
Bank loan FITER 24 1,535 -
Advance drawn on bill receivable BYWEE2EEREZ
discounted with full recourse FEUTBEIR Z 15 2 B3R 20 = 941
Current tax liabilities BB E 640 1,351
54,356 62,822
Net current assets RBEEFHE 368,838 575,768
Total assets less current liabilities B EERAEEE 369,541 592,569
Capital and reserves attributable ZXAFHEABERAR
to owners of the Company =4
Share capital AR A 25 4,564 4,564
Reserves f# 364,977 588,005
Total equity Bl 369,541 592,569

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to FISENTIE e BHREE R =
179 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board T-NF=ZAZt+tREE=gH
of Directors on 27 March 2018 and were signed on its ERFETIE YA TIHNEEREK

behalf by: mE

WANG Zhen Dong Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
EH/RR

Director Director

3 EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mAEmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=%

At 1 January 2016

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

MJ‘M%W&&/J&%&

Available-for-sale investments THHERE

- Change in fair value -ATEEY

Exchange differences on BEBNERELCENEE
translating foreign operations

- Exchange loss arising during the year  —FREL 2 EHEE

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

Release upon deregistration of
a subsidiary

Recognition of equity-settled share
based payments

At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year
Reclassification adjustment for the fair
value changed included in profit or

loss upon disposal of available-for-sale

TFERE (BR) /HELE

REEEL-HHBARRER

ENBACERDAER 21K

rEEER2ERE/ (BE)

REETREERRRHF AREL
AFEEDELENIRSEE

investments
Exchange differences on translating ~ BEBHFBEEZELER
foreign operations
- Exchange gains arising -EREEZEL NG
during the year
Total comprehensive income /{oss) FEE2EkKE/ (BB B8
for the year
Release upon disposal of subsidiaries R EH BA AR EE

Recognition of equity-settled share
based payments

At 31 December 2017

ERAEERDAER 2K

RZF-+t5+-A=+-8

—tHF+ZA=t-ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Note: Other capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share
capital and the share premium of the subsidiaries at the
date on which they were acquired by the Group and the
nominal value of the share capital issued as consideration

for the acquisition.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the

Company was nil (2016: Nil).

KRARAAEE

Retained

Other Investment profits/

capital revaluation Share  (Accumulated

Share Share reserve  Contributed Translation reserve options losses)
Capital premium it surplus reserve REEf reserve REEH/ Total
S RiEE ERGR EON-1) BERE BE  BRERE  (RAER) @it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL T FET TET TEL AL TET TEL
4,564 57,856 14,945 441,253 2,243 - 9,949 97,320 623,644
- - - - - - - (52,352) (52,352)
- - - - - 7,118 - - 7,118
- - - - (476) - - - (476)
- - - - (476) 7,118 - (52,352) (45,710)
- - - - 2,185 - - - 2,185
- - - - - - 12,450 - 12,450
4,564 57,856 14,945 441,253 (534) 7,118 22,399 44,968 592,569
- - - - - - - (217,084) (217,084)
- - - - - (1.118) - - (7.118)
- - - - 135 - - - 135
- - - - 135 (7,118) - (217,084) (224,067)
- - - - 363 - - - 363
- - - - - - 676 - 676
4,564 57,856 14,945 441,253 (36) - 23,075 (172,116) 369,541

23 . > = = =
Bt REBZEMERFEEERBER
= h s s

AIEAEEWEE R 2 RARK

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #fERIEHR A F
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Operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Unrealised loss on
held-for-trading investments
Realised loss/(gains) on
held-for-trading investments
Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Impairment loss on trade
receivables
Interest expense
Interest income
Share-based payment expense
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on deregistration of
a subsidiary

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Increase in deposits
Decrease in trade and

other receivables
Increase in loan receivables
Increase in bank balances
- segregated accounts
Decrease in bill receivable
discounted with full recourse
Increase in held-for-trading
investments
(Decrease)/increase in trade
and other payables

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid
Interest paid

Net cash used in operating
activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—-ALFE

BEER
FREATE R
ECEE
NE BERRBINE

RIFEEREZAERER

BIFEEREYL
BEERER/ (M=)
HERHEERE 2 W

BWE 7&K R ERR

FEFX

FE WA

DA D A BB 2 PR X
HE W B LAz s

HEEL—RNBARZER

At ZEES BB
REFLR

RE LM

=
2

FEUE 5 R Ak B L At JE MR SRR D

FE U & SRR
RITHEERIB AN
—BIKRF
MEEZHEREZ
FEU BE 3 R4 RL
FEEEREEM

BNESERME M
FERFIE ORid) /#m

RegmeRe
ERFEE
ERFHE

REeXBDRAZHREFE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
(216,587) (52,222)
769 989
205,118 38,809
14,147 (4,052)
(1,564) -
- 156

86 14

(11) (6)
676 12,450
(3.314) -
- 2,185

(680) (1,677)

- (205)
25,509 29,485
(19,394) (169,066)
(3,937) (11,453)
941 304
(47,440) (37,823)
(3.574) 6,188
(48,575) (184,247)
(1,208) -
(86) (14)
(49,869) (184,261)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

Investing activities

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Net cash outflow from disposal of
subsidiaries

Interest received

Net cash generated from/
(used in) investing activities

Financing activities

Increase in advance drawn on bill
receivables discounted with
full recourse

Repayment of advance drawn on
bill receivables discounted with
full recourse

Addition of bank loan

Repayment of bank loan

Net cash generated from/
(used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Effects of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the financial year

Analysis of cash and cash
equivalents at the end of
the financial year:

Cash and bank balances
- House accounts
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2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
- (838)
8,586 -
(21) -

1
8,576 (832)
2,280 11,233
(3.221) (11,537)
2,000 -
(465) (488)
594 (792)
(40,699) (185,885)
390 (653)
125,842 312,380
85,533 125,842
85,533 125,842




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

GENERAL

SunCorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Act of Bermuda and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and Unit 1201-05, 12/F China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
repectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
principally engage in the design and sales of
telephones and related products, processing and
trading of used computer-related components,
provision of brokerage, placing and underwriting
services, money lending service in Hong Kong and
B2B cross-border e-commerce and payment business.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatory
effective for the current year

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure
Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in
financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in
cash flows from financing activities.

The Group’s liabilities arising from financing
activities consist of advance drawn on bill receivable
discounted with full recourse (note 20) and bank
loan (note 24).

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note 27.
Consistent with the transition provisions of
the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 27, the
application of these amendments has had no impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses”

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments clarify
how an entity should evaluate whether there will be
sufficient future taxable profits against which it can
utilise a deductible temporary difference.

The application of these amendments has had
no impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements as the Group already assesses the
sufficiency of future taxable profits in way that is
consistent with these amendments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS
12 included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle for the first time in the current
year. The other amendments included in this package
are not yet mandatorily effective and they have not
been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRS 12 states that an entity need not provide
summarised financial information for interests in
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures that are
classified (or included in a disposal group that is
classified) as held for sale. The amendments clarify
that this is the only concession from the disclosure
requirements of HKFRS 12 for such interests.

The application of these amendments has had
no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as none of the Group's interests in these
entities are classified, or included in a disposal group
that is classified, as held for sale.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=%

—tHF+ZA=t-ALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments’
Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration'’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 -
2017 Cycle?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

The above new HKFRSs are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these
is excepted to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Specifically, pursuant to HKFRS 9, all recognised
financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

ERHIREET 2B
MBBEER ([FRYH
HEER]) (80

B M E E R E MBI FFT K

effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held

IR BB B RS ZER
(&)

BB B HEEREIN [
BILA] (%)

BN REENFIRZ TR

ME

FrB B &R & RS &R
FORBEAZCHER R
BERERYARBIHKAN
ENFEFE-FHHZER

within a business model whose objective is to RERBEHNRERENE
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have BERERAFMBFEELELHR
contractual cash flows that are solely payments EREAMRRERA R

of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“"FVTOCI”). All other
financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAFITIRKEITZER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING R REER ([FEBMK
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) WEER]) (@)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet 2 BB S RERPFET R

effective (continued) KIZFT B BB REER
(&)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued) EBER L ERIFEIN [ £
BT A (#&)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9: (continued) EEMBRELEAFIR I EE
HE: (&)

with regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Except for the potential early recognition of credit
losses based on the expected credit loss model in
relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised costs, additional disclosure in respect
of loan, trade and other receivables including
any significant judgements and estimation made,
and enhanced disclosures about the Group’s risk
management activities, the management of the
Group anticipates that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in
the future may not have other significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities based on an analysis of
the Group’s financial instruments as at 31 December
2017.

HKFRS 15 ” Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of
the framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 “ Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRSs. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=%

2.

—tHF+ZA=t-ALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 “ Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer. The standard permits
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 3. Management has assessed the
effects of applying the new standard on the Group's
financial statements and does not expect a significant
impact on the recognition of revenue.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting
treatment of leases and will in the future no longer
allow lessees to account for certain leases outside
the statement of financial position. Instead, all
long-term leases must be recognised in the statement
of financial position in the form of assets (for the
rights of use) and lease liabilities (for the payment
obligations). Short-term leases with a lease term of
twelve months or less and leases of low-value assets
are exempt from such reporting obligations. The
new standard will therefore result in recognition of a
right-to-use asset and an increase in lease liabilities
in the statement of financial position. In the income
statement, rental expenses will be replaced with
depreciation and interest expense. The new standard
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

is not expected to be applied by the Group until the
financial year ending 31 December 2019. HKFRS 16
will primarily affect the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. At 31 December 2017, the Group
had non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of HK$7,616,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 the
majority of operating lease commitments will be
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.
The lease liabilities would subsequently be measured
at amortised cost and the right-of-use assets will be
depreciated on a straight-line basis during the lease
term.

Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of other new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations and
is not yet in a position to state whether they will
have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, HKASs and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA, and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;
e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for services provided in the
ordinary course of business. Revenue is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
e it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the

Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Commission income from brokerage services

Brokerage commission income is recognised on a
trade date basis when the relevant sale or purchase
of securities transactions is executed.

Commission income from placing and
underwriting service

Placing and underwriting commission is recognised
in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreement or deal mandate when the relevant
significant act has been completed.

Handling and settlement fee income

Handling and settlement fee income is recognised
when the relevant transactions have been arranged
or the relevant services have been rendered.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straightline basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Nonmonetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Nonmonetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE=—Z—tF+=-A=+—HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise except for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in
the cost of those assets when they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowings;

e exchange differences on transactions entered
into in order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks (see the accounting policies below); and

e exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed through
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
(continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees (continued)

The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straightline basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). For share options
that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
(continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured
at the fair values of the goods or services received,
except where that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case the goods or services received
are measured by reference to the fair value of the
share options granted. The fair values of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment on tangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"”), held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale (“AFS") financial
assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income
is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) contingent consideration that
may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading or contingent consideration that may be paid
by an acquirer as part of a business combination may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or

liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or

interest earned on the financial assets.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity

investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

106 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ¥7#ERIER A T

3.

FTESTEHE (#)

THRIA (&)
EHEE (%)

B FEIIABZRZ 2@ E
E (%)

RTANER eREE (TEHE
RHEFEEZ aMEENNE
AR N2 HARE (ERZE
Baotz —&87) ) AR B IR
REEETRELATFTEINAER
iE -

o EEBREKRIANERLDEH
RIRBAR A LG 23 g
RMERT—BRIBER
%

s REAKBEIHZARE
BRIRERE SREER
—HXEEMAERR IR
AFEFFHZEMEEX
TREEZHAIMEZ
Hef =8 m&ZFHEEZ
B R 15 1zt 2 | A AR R
sk

s BARES —HIMNLHNA
ETETRAZAHZ — B
- A RIREEE 5T £
FIVRBRFAENDEHAN
(BEXBB)EER/REA
FEIABmE-

BRAFEIABREZERE
ERAFEIE EMAEEL
ZAEMKRE KB RER SR -
R 18 an BE AR 2 W 2k BK B 18 % BR
BREASHEERROETARK
BEF S e

AR ETBEE

AL ESREENEEART
HHEXRBEOERQ@ERK
IR : D) IHERIM 2 RE
H(OBERFEIABERZE
BMEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
AFS financial assets (continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating
to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss
on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity investments are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including loans,
trade and other receivables, bill receivable discounted
with full recourse and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

e breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
loans, trade and other receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

FTESTEHE (#)

TR T A (&)
T HEE (#)

THEERE (&)

o EREAK EBEWMRHLIER
MEBHARE K

o BRI BE M BR B 2 Sk B
TBEE 5

s —HIMEEZEERMYS
AR SN2 -

RETEINEREE(NE
R EUE 5 8RN E B MR
)M E - ARG I (E B R E
MEES® RN BRELETNG
EBRE - AR KA A HIRR
ENEEEEERARELERE
Wi s HEANBBFHESR
HIZ EBERRE LT AN E
R [ OB AR OR 3R B R E
BB W RIAREEEER -

IRBHAAI R ZERMEE
mE MERZHEBERESER
BEEREERMGT RERER
ENRE(REREEZRER
MERFH) 2 EHEHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 & 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of loans, trade and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When an item of
loans, trade and other receivables is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and
other payables, advance drawn on bill receivable
discounted with full recourse and bank loan are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in
net gains or losses.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue recognition
policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognise
its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=%

3.

—tHF+ZA=t-ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

114 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ¥7#ERI B R A 7

3.

FTESTEHE (#)

TR T A (&)

AU ERE ()

PERIERCHEER BB
BEEEED W R ERARENAR
2 EZ(EREM2E K
BRUNE=ZE)BME =
R RIBRER -

FrEmEAZ E RN R IEFER
TREER AEEHTRMEE
ZHRERmEREEDER
I R BHER 8 2 B 1RR
ZMEREZARZMEELQT
BELDE T BERBHED
FeermERZBHEHRE
&EE R E b 2 W am B AR R
DEZEMRAWENERZ
RANFE R Z8E TN BN
’Ij Emﬁﬁﬂiﬁ”& f@uuz%
P E IR EEER S
MR BERBND 2HERF
BEZMEBEL DR -

AEBREEETERR BUS
jZmJJ:H-r FERIFEReRE
ERITERAZEMEBEZE

ETEE@EH&FEHFH fE] 2= 5
N B R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of
the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment for loan receivables, trade and
other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for loan
receivables, trade and other receivables resulting
from the inability of the customers to make the
required payments. The Group bases the estimates
on the aging of the trade debtors and loan
receivables, customer credit-worthiness, and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of
the customers were to deteriorate, actual write offs
would be higher than estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent
it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The board of directors of the
Company works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market data
to estimate the fair value of certain types of financial
instruments. Note 6(c) provide detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of various assets.

Valuation of share options

The Binomial Option Pricing Model and Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model were applied to estimate the
fair value of share options granted by the Company.
These pricing models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the volatility of
share price. The changes in input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Provision for income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The management evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, the management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt
(which includes bank loan) and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits/accumulated
losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group monitor its capital structure on the basis
of gearing ratio. The Group considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through the issue of new shares as well as the issue
of new debt.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

Debt (i) B ()
Equity (i) 7 25 (i)
Gearing ratio BEARBEELE

(i) Debt includes bank loans.
(i)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

In addition, one subsidiary of the Group licensed by
the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC")
are obliged to meet the regulatory liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR"”) adopted by the
SFC. Under the FRR, a regulated entity must maintain
liquid capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as
determined by FRR) in excess of HK$3 million or 5%
of the total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher.
The subsidiary has complied with the liquid capital
requirements imposed by the FRR during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. E@IT A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) e T E %A
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Financial assets eHMEE
Financial assets at fair value BmAFEABRE
through profit or loss LEMEE
— Held-for-trading investments  — 5 {EE &R E 68,661 240,486
Available-for-sale investments A ERE = 14,140
Loan and receivables B3N e EkE
— Trade and other receivables —EUWE FERRK
K H b fE Y ER B 63,473 84,119
— Loan receivables —ERE R 188,460 169,066
— Bill receivable discounted -WEE2EEREL
with full recourse JE W B 3R 4R - 941
— Bank balances and cash —IRTTEBRNIR S 100,923 137,295
352,856 391,421
Financial liabilities tHmes
Financial liabilities at B B EK AT BR
amortised cost Zemas
— Trade and other payables —ERNEZEX
K HL A FE A5 OB 47,669 58,269
- Bank loan —RITER 1,535 -
— Advance drawn on bill — B BEEEBRE
receivable discounted with 2 FEUT AL IR =%
full recourse ZER - 941
49,204 59,210
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TR I A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MEEREEBEERK

and policies K

The Group's major financial instruments rEEzFTZEsRI AR
include loans, trade and other receivables, bill FEF BREZFERKELE
receivable discounted with full recourse, equity fhEWRIE -HEZ2EHEBR
investments, bank balances, trade and other 2 EWANIREE R
payables, advance drawn on bill receivable B RITHESR EBNEHK
discounted with full recourse and bank loan. The TR K B At AN RIE -~ T 32 B
risks associated with these financial instruments ErHEREZEIKAE
include market risk (foreign currency risk, interest EBRZBRRRITER
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and HZEZem T AEBEZRA
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate b2 B 3E T 5 R B (SN R
these risks are set out below. The management B~ I K @ f Ke H At B 4% &
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure %) FEERRBERBES
appropriate measures are implemented on a J\ Bz - AR R 5% 5 L B T R
timely and effective manner. BB ERHERTX-EEE

BEEREEIFEE
AT 1R BE No B M0 B R R
BL& i 6 i o

Market risk 7% [ 2
(i) Foreign currency risk (1) IMEE R
Several subsidiaries of the Company have NN Sl )= /NS F
foreign currency sales and purchases, which TUINEETECER:
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. AN £ [E A i [ ¥ SN R
AO
At the end of the reporting period, the R ERBERE K
carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary SENHEERER
assets and monetary liabilities denominated B2 BB UINEEE
in currencies other than the respective ECEKEERER
functional currencies of the relevant group BEZEEENT:
entities are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2017 2016 2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET TET TAET

usD ETT - 140 13,454 7,698
HKD BT 3,282 393 382 1,712
British Pound g ([%EEE])
("GBP") 124 354 = -
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR
(TARM]) 1,409 - 205 223
Australian dollars BT ([Ex])
("AUD") — - 286 7,812
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE
6. €RLT A (#)
(b) BRI EE B R RK
R ()
5 (&)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

() sMEmE (&)

(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As HKD is pegged with USD, the Group’s
currency risk in relation to the monetary
assets and monetary liabilities denominated
in USD or HKD is expected to be minimal.
The Group is mainly exposed to the effects
of fluctuation in GBP and RMB.

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease
in HKD against the respective foreign
currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. On this basis, there will be
an increase/a decrease in profit/loss where
HKD strengthens 5% against the respective
foreign currencies, and vice versa.

BRRE DM

MR B TTHE R TTH 8
REB AR T HA TR
BEzE¥EEREREA
BEHHBAEERRE
B-AEBETEmMEH R
BERMARBERRE 2

By 488
=

NRFEFYE T HEEI
WM E 5% FFHART
BEAREBMIFE 5%
AREEEBEITAE
HINEE @ Bex [ 3R BEF BT 5
CHBRERELE RRE
BEHIINEERESRE
BR AT RE IR 2 BB
FH-BEELSMER
AN EHEMAEE
ZEBIEE WHINE
E R 25% & 8 iy 58 &
EHEERAREHME
HEREZBE R A
2 fiw 7 JT AR B AN I
FHES% EEZm A,
BEREEE M D
RZ IR
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AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

6. TR IT A (#)

MBEEREEERERK
R ()

5 (&)
() srEmEE (&)

BREDH (B)

Impact of GBP Impact of RMB Impact of AUD
REeeg ARBZEE Rriesg
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TExr THET TFEx TET FEXT TExX
(Decrease)/increase FRER(RD) /
in loss for the year #hn (6) (18) (60) 1 14 391

(ii) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank loan.

The Group is also exposed cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances, advance drawn on bill receivable
discounted with full recourse. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of LIBOR arising from the Group’s USD
denominated advance drawn on bill
receivable discounted with full recourse.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EF T A (@)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MEREREEBEERK
and policies (continued) K (@)

Market risk (continued) TSR (&)

(if) Interest rate risk (continued) (i) FIZ@E e (&)

(1)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
variable interest rate of advance drawn on
bill receivable discounted with full recourse
at the end of reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably

BREDM

T BB E 5 AT AR R
WERRERFEE 2
EYMELZEHEREZ
FEUREIR IR 2 A
F BRI R g E T
WEBBOME IR
RN EEEARER
EENEESERS
F—EHWAREE50E
B EHANMERE
B & 3R} F) = & b 55 52 A3
- REEEBYHME

possible change in interest rates. BIEAIEEBAAELE A
AT o

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's loss (2016:
loss) for the year would increase/decrease
(2016: increase/decrease) by zero (2016:
HK$5,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable-rate advance drawn on bill
receivable discounted with full recourse.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
mainly through its investments in equity
securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks.

% FI = _EF, 50
EeifmprA HmEE
H@HIE KEB
AEEEBEB(ZE—X
FoEB)BEE M
W (ZF—XRF:
#wmm ) EE T
(ZZF— /X% :5,000%
) WEBRAAE
ERBELHEZMBR
B2 RN ER 28
FUAFBFEE BFE
2R ERB -

(iii) E M (Z 15 )7 Sz

AEBETEARKRER
P AN 38 25 T 1 S B AR (B
BRER-EREEBBR
Fr — il i A R E R 2 3%
BT B AES M EZ
It TR R B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE=—Z—tF+=-A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TR I A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MEEREEBEERK

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
(ifi) Other price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting
period. If prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% (2016: 5%)
higher/lower:

e Joss (2016: loss) for the year would
decrease/increase by approximately
HK$3,433,000 (2016: decrease/increase
by approximately HK$12,024,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of
held-for-trading investments; and

e investment valuation reserve would
increase/decrease by Nil (2016:
HK$707,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables, loan receivables
and amounts due from cash clients, brokers and
clearing houses. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE
6. €RLT A (#)
(b) BRI EE B R RK

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Money lending business

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approval and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken for the recoverable amount. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual's loan receivables at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment loss are made for irrecoverable
amounts. As at 31 December 2017, based on
past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment on individual loans is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk
for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the customer
based on the customer’s financial position,
past experience and other factors. The Group
holds collateral against receivable and interest
receivables. Individual risk limits are set based on
the value of collaterals provided by customers
and internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the directors. The utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored.
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GEMBHREME
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE=—Z—tF+=-A=+—HLEE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EFT H (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MEEREEBEERK

and policies (continued) x(#)
Credit risk (continued) EERERE (&)
Money lending business (continued) MEEF (&)

The Group has concentration of credit risk
in certain individual customers. As at 31
December 2017, the largest loan receivables
was approximately HK$119,098,000 (2016:
HK$109,098,000) and was approximately
63% (2016: 65%) of the Group’s total loan
receivables. The Group seeks to minimise its risk
by dealing with counterparties which have good
credit history.

Provision of brokerage services

In order to manage the credit risk in the accounts
receivable due from clients arising from business
dealing in securities, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all clients. Trade receivables
from cash clients generally settled in two days
after trade date, credit risk arising from trade
receivables due from cash clients is considered
minimal. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
credit risk is significantly reduced. Market
conditions and adequacy of securities collateral
and monitored by management on a daily basis.

In respect of amounts receivable from clearing
houses, credit risks are considered low as the
Group normally enters into transactions with
clearing houses which are registered with
regulatory bodies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

6. R T H (&)
(b) IBEAMEERERK

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Other credit risks

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to manage the credit risk, the Group
has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
being managed.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are creditworthy banks.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk in
certain individual customers. At the end of each
reporting period, the five largest receivables
balances accounted for approximately 82%
(2016: approximately 71%) of the trade
receivables and the largest receivable was
approximately 28% (2016: approximately 22%)
of the Group’s total trade receivables. The
Group seeks to minimise its risk by dealing with
counterparties which have good credit history.
Majority of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have no default payment
history.
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GEMBHmEMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE
6. R T H (&)
(b) BIEREEEEZRK

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Other credit risks (continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from loan,
trade and other receivables are set out in note
18 and 19.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands and to ensure
compliance with FRR. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions and other lenders to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of Group's non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity tables

2017 ZE-tF%

Non-derivative FiTECRER
financial liabilities

Trade and other ENE SRR
payables REMEMNTE

Bank loan RITER

Weighted
average
interest

rate
M
THRIE
%

%

3.24

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

6. TR IT A (#)

(b) BBEREEBERK
R ()

REBEZEE ()

Carrying

amount

On at
demand Total 31/12/2017
or less undis- iy
than counted “B-tF

1 year 1t02 Over cash flow tZh
EERS years 3 years BB =1-H
HSME 1226 3%NL RERBE 2KREE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
THERT TR TR THERL THERT
47,669 - - 47,669 47,669
731 731 183 1,645 1,535
48,400 731 183 49,314 49,204
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AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. R T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIREGEEEZERK
and policies (continued) x(#)
Liquidity risk (continued) BB % E e (E)
Liquidity tables (continued) HBEL K (E)
Carrying
amount
On at
Weighted demand Total  31/12/2016
average or less undis- N
interest than counted —E-AF
rate 1 year Tt02 Over  cash flow TZA

mE  EERH years 2 years *BBE =1-H
TRz SNE 122E FNLE RemeE kAR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

% THL THIL THIL THIL THL

2016 ZE-1F
Non-derivative financial FE{T£4REE
liabilities
Trade and other ENE SRR
payables REMEMNTE - 58,269 - - 58,269 58,269
Advance drawn on BXME2E
bill receivable BERE K
discounted with REELBH
full recourse 3.7 944 - - 944 94

59,213 - - 59,213 59,210
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE
6. €RLT A (#)
() EMIAZAFEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

(i) Fair value of the Group's financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

Fair value as at

() UAEEEELRFE
HEZ AL B BE
EZAFE

AEEBOHEREEN
ZMEPRHERBIZA
FEFE TRE W
FeMEEZATEE
EEANE R (55l =
P R 2 (R B $f0 K2 B
ABUR)

RUTREZAFE
31/12/2017 31/12/2016 Valuation technique(s) Significant
—E-tf —Z—7F Fairvalue and key input(s) unobservable input(s)
Financial assets +=A +=A hierarchy B TEMREIBE
tREE =+-8 =t+—H 2AYEER REgRAHE M A"E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Listed equity securities in 68,661 240,486  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
Hong Kong classified as £F—& active market TEH
held-for-trading investments REBTEMBLEANE
in the consolidated statement
of financial position
RiZERBERARIE
BREEBEREZER
ERAES
Unlisted fund investment - 14,140  Level 3 Net asset value  Value of the underlying
classified as available-for-sale £ BEFHE unlisted debt

investments in the
consolidated statement of
financial position

RERUBRARIE
RARNEREZF LW
EoRE

investment of

the fund (2017:N/A)
(2016: Discount for
credit default risky rate
and discount for lack of
marketability) (note)
ez B@kELED
EHRREEBE
(Z2—+%:TEA)
(Z2—R%F:
ERENRRE
ZHERRZAEEN
2B (M) )
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e M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

Note:

2016: 5% increase in discount for credit default
risky rate would result in decrease in fair value by
approximately HK$301,000 and 5% increase in
discount for lack of marketability would result in
decrease in fair value by approximately HK$10.

There were no transfers between Level 1
and 2 in current and prior years.

(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements

At 1 January 2016
Total gains recognised in
other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017

Reclassification adjustment for
the fair value changed included in profit
or loss upon disposal recognised in
other comprehensive income

Gains on disposal recognised in
profit or loss

Disposal

At 31 December 2017
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6. TR IT A (#)
() EMIAZQFEFE
(%)

(1)

KB E R BN FlE
AEZAEETHE
EZNFE(E)

w3t

ZE-RNFEREHNRA
B R 2 P& 5% 58
A FER A 4301,000
B MRZATSEE 2
MELEAS% AIEEH A
FERADH10ETT -

RAEER EFEAE
FE-—REF_H/MEHN
B

(i) E=ZRLFEFTEZ
AR
Available-
for-sale
investments
AHEERE
HK$'000
FAET
R—_ZFE—XRFEF—H—H 7,022
= e T g A
B Y = AR BB 7,118
R ZZE—REF
+=-—A=+—8K
—E—+tF—H—H 14,140
R E AL 2 E WA EREA
HERBE s AFE
HEEHEF S EAR
(7,118)
REBEZEREHE RS
1,564
& (8,586)

R-_E—+F+_A4

=+-8



offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below
include financial assets and financial liabilities
that are subject to an enforceable master netting

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Financial assets and financial liabilities

arrangement or similar agreement.

Under the agreement of continuous net
settlement made between the Group and Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
("HKSCC"), the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off the money obligations receivable
and payable with HKSCC on the same settlement
date and the Group intends to settle on a net

basis.

As at 31 December 2017

Financial assets
Trade receivables - Clearing house

Financial liabilities
Trade payables - Clearing house

SREE
EWESER - BER

SRAR
EREAER-BER

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE
6. €RLT A (#)
d) eMEEREHREEE
TRABZERBEREXA
R MITREFREE LY

‘}Z*EMWJ TR ZE &
BENEMAE-

REASELEFEPRE
Mﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
FHZREFREE hE
K%l%ﬁ*%Tﬁﬂﬁ
TR LEHEREE R
%%#”ﬁ%%%&%ﬁ
EREE MAEBAEER
FEEELE

R=B—-—tH+=-A=+-

H

Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets/ assets/
(liabilities) (liabilities)

Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement
of financial position

set off in presented in
Gross amounts  the consolidated the consolidated
of recognised statement of statement of

financial financial financial Financial Collateral
assets/ position position instruments received
(liabilities) REAHBRRE REAHE BER
BER AEHZERR e GRARMBRRRA Net
SHEE/ SHEE/  2EREE/ E#ZEBRE amount
(BR) AR (8 &8 (8% 38 SRIA BRERR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhET TR FhT TR FEx FhT
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e M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=%

—tHF+ZA=t-ALFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Financial assets and financial liabilities

offsetting (continued)

6.

TRTIA (&)
d) eMEEREHREEE
#H (®)

As at 31 December 2016 BHE-_FT—-X"FEF+=H
=+—HIEFE
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets/ assets/
(liabilities) (liabilities)
set off in presented in
Gross amounts  the consolidated  the consolidated Related amounts not set off
of recognised statement of statement of in the consolidated statement
financial financial financial of financial position
assets/ position position Financial Collateral
(liabilities) REAMTHE instruments received
X HRE A8 PRRGARBRRER Net
SREE/ & 2EREE/ gl e amount
(af) @ (Bff) 8 (Bf)F8 ERIA BUERG et}
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL FiEL FiET T FiET FiEn
Financial assets SREE
Trade receivables - Clearing house EUWE SN -BER 752 (595) 157 - - 157
Financial liabilities SHER
Trade payables - Clearing house ERNESER-EERH (689) 595 94 - - 94
M2
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WEkaHER

Revenue represents the gross amounts received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside

customers,

placing and underwriting

related income from securities and

less returns and allowances,
income from provision of money lending services,
commission income from provision of brokerage,
interest and
income from

services,

provision of e-commerce service during the year.
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interest

W KRAEBEFARIRE

FPHEEmzE K& EWKIEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(continued)

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

Wi K 2 ZBE R (&)

AERBERFRNZWBEDHT

follows:
2017 2016
—E-tF Z—T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Design and sales of telephones Rt RHEEBF
and related component N AR BE 48 14 139,183 177,462
Processing and trading of used BRIEREE _FEMK
computer-related component AT 44,457 55,053
Money lending services A& AR 7 14,998 12,616
Commission from securities BHREERKERBES
dealing and brokerage services pdiikn 585 187
Placing and underwriting & RBIEHME
commission 205 6,858
Interest and related income BHEEEZHNE
from securities NAEEE YA 1,068 372
B2B cross-border e-commerce TEHDPEBIREFEE
and payment SR 149,547 10,975
350,043 263,523

B R DB Ko 88K IR [
ARFRATES (HEBELR
RE)VMERMZEH ZFERR
et E S iR 7% 2 JR 8L -
AEERBEEYHHREER
FRE D2 ATHELEEE D

Information reported to executive directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods or services delivered or provided. The
Group’s reportable and operating segments under

HKFRS 8 are as follows: IS U

(i) Design and sales of telephones and related (i) BT hEEEFENMBEHE
components %

(i) Processing and trading of used computer-related (i ERREBE_FEKEHA
components ARG

(iii) Money lending services (i) MERS
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GaMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=F—t&+=-A=+—-HALFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(iv) Provision of brokerage, placing and underwriting
services

(v) B2B cross-border e-commerce and payment
business

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results by reportable and operating segment.

7. WERkDHER (#)

(iv) TR BL & N B 3H AR 7%

(v CEHCEBEREFEK
SEENE
PR &Y

LATF':,TE/,\% B e = EB
DA 2 ek Je 548 -

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tHF+=RAR=+-—
BLEFE
Provision of
brokerage, B2B
Used placing and  cross-border
Telephones  computer- underwriting  e-commerce
and related related services and payment
components  components Money R{tSE. Lb¥EHLE
gk -FEH lending RER  BRET Total
ABAE  RRAs HE  BERE EBERXA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn ThEn TER TER TER
Revenue 6
External sales e 139,183 44,4571 14,998 1858 149547 350,083
Segment profit/(loss) AREH/ (FR) 1,220 115 14,476 (1,208) 828 15,431
Interest income on bank deposits {7723 F B RA 11
Unrealised loss on RIEBEREZ
held-for-trading investments 2HER (205,118)
Realised loss on FIEBEREL
held-for-trading investments BEERNE (14,147)
Dividend income from RIEEEREL
available-for-sale investments REHA 6,066
Gain on disposal of HHERE
available-for-sale investments HElE 1,564
Unallocated expenses AAERX (20,308)
Finance costs BERE (86)
Loss before tax BEAEE (216,587)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WER T EBER (8)

(continued)

7B R K A (8

Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_T—XF+A=1+—
HIEFE
Provision of
brokerage, B28
Used placing and  cross-border
Telephones  computer- underwriting  e-commerce
and related related services  and payment
components  components Money — REEE LEHLE
EAR -FEM lending RER  BRET Total

LTI BE BERE  AERIN it
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'00O
TER TER TER TER TiEL TR

Revenue W
External sales HoNEE 177,462 55,053 12,616 7417 10975 263,523
Segment (loss)/profit A4 (BE) /%R (2,682) 360 12,599 3,151 (10,563) 2,865
Interest income on bank deposits /7 E | BIA 6
Unrealised loss on RIEEEREL

held-for-trading investments AERER (38,809)
Realised gains on REEEREL

held-for-trading investments BEERNE 4,052
Dividend income from AfEHERE Y

available-for-sale investments fREMA 11,421
Unallocated expenses AAERY (31743)
Finance costs BENK (14)
Loss before tax BHAEE (52,222)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit/(loss) represents
the profit earned by/loss from each segment without
allocation of interest income, dividend income,
gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments,
realised/unrealised gains/(loss) on held-for-trading
investments, unallocated expenses such as central
administrative costs and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision
makers for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Ry BREY & SR B SE3 AT
MR EEN G BREREMER -
DEWEN (BE)RKKRELE
DEMBEA-BBEEA-HE
REEEREZWa HIFEE
RECER RERKE (B
B)  AROBH P RITHAK
AR BERART &0 B ATHRE
2N, S EBE R E
BRoRERBAFEMEEEL
BRREERZ L
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e MBHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-BLFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2017

Assets &z
Seqment assets PHEE
Unallocated assets AOREE
Liabilities 8f
Seqment liabilities AHER
Unallocated liabilities AAEEE

Used

Telephones  computer-

and related related

components  components
EFR  CFER

BRAr  ABAk
HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TR

14421 6,098

(32,849) (1,975)
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Provision of
brokerage, B2B
placing and  cross-border
underwriting  e-commerce
services and payment
Money R{t&E. rEHbE
lending RER  BREY
HE  BERE  BERXA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRR TRR TRR

190,513 88,462 26,370

(643) (15,484) (58)

Total
HK$'000
ThEn

325,864
98,033

423,897

(51,009)
(3,347)

(54,356)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WER T EBER (8)

(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) DEHEERERE (#)
As at 31 December 2016 N\_E—RFE+TZHA=+—H
Provision of
brokerage, B28
Used placing and  cross-border
Telephones  computer- underwriting  e-commerce
and related related services  and payment
components  components Money — RfEE.-  AEHLX
EHER  CFER lending RER  BRET Total

LT BE eERE  AERIN it
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Assets BE

Seqment assets AHEE 23,188 7,683 170,08 90,815 14,792 306,536

Unallocated assets AOREE 348,855

655,391

Liabilities L |

Segment liabilities HHEE (39,556) (1,726) (134) (12,404) (3,604) (57,424)

Unallocated liabilites AORAE (5398)

(62,822)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance RERSBRELRSHHEZE

and allocating resources between segments: BROBLME -

e all assets are allocated to operating segments s MBEEBVIRELED
other than available-for-sale investments, BRI EERE FE
held-for-trading investments and other BEERENUREMKS B
unallocated corporate assets; and EEERIN K

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments s FEBEEBEHUIERELZESD
other than other unallocated corporate liabilities. BoEEMAROBREMCEAE

BRI o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 & 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TE R R EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-BLFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Amounts included in

the measure of segment

orofit or loss o
seqment assets:

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

Unrealised loss on
held-for-trading
investments

Realised loss on
held-for-trading
investments

Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale
investments

Share-based payment
expense

Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries

PHRENERH
7
0% BERRAENE
RFERAAL
REEEREZ

EEAER

HEAnERE i

Telephones
and related
components

LED
BRas
HK$'000

TEL

Used
computer-
related
components
eS|
BBan
HKS000
Tin

7. W=

Provision of

brokerage,

placing and
underwriting

services

Money — REEL.
lending BER
HE AR
HKS'000 HK$'000
TEr TR

B2B
cross-horder
g-commerce

and payment
i $1 4
BRETHE
kXA
HKS000
TEn

26

(3,314)

Unallocated

#98
HK$'000
TEL

589

205,118

14,147

(1,564)

676

Total
HK$'000
Tén

769

205,118

14,147

(1,564)
676

(3314)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Amounts included in

the measure of segment

orofit or loss o
segment assets:
Addition to property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on
tradle receivables
Unrealised loss on
held-for-trading
Investments
Realised gain on
held-for-trading
investments
Share-based payment
expense
Loss on deregistration of
a subsidiary

FETTERD
PHRENERH
7

FENZ RERRE

% BERRENE

ERERET HERE

REEERAZ
R5ER

HEEEREL
LT

AR BERZMHFX

HH-FNELRL
FR

Telephones
and related
components
EER
il ik
HK$ 000
TATL

Used
computer-
related
components
“FER
e
HK$'000
Tén

Money
lending
s
HK$'000
TER

7. WEKkDEEFR (&)

Hib 2 #REH (&)

BHE_ZT-—RNF+_A=+—
HIEFE
Provision of
brokerage, B2B
placngand  cross-border
underwriting  e-commerce
services  and payment
UL ARHEX
RER BREFEK  Unalocated Tota
Bk Rt ~AE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR T THAT
301 537 - 838
15 239 595 989
- - - 156
- - 38,809 38,809
- - (4,052) (4,052)
- - 12,450 12,450
- - 2,185 2,185
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e BHmEME
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-BLFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WER T EBER (8)

(continued)

Geographical information it & & 8

The Group's main operations are located in Hong REBEBFELBMURE B K
Kong. Information about the Group's revenue from SEEREPHEMNEEH»RE
external customers by geographical location of the INREPzWam 2 ER A KRR
customers and information about its non-current EEWEBUES S Z2IERBE
assets by geographical location of assets are detailed EZERFFRIT

below:

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REMAEF 2 E FRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET THET FAET

People’s Republic of RE AR

China ("PRC") ([HEl)

(including Hong Kong) (BEESE) 43,799 78,562 498 2,456
Malaysia BRAR 32,749 25,829 = =
Spain 78 3 oF 16,632 13,971 - -
Singapore T hnig 5,405 21,400 - -
Italy BRH 7,547 25,141 — =
Netherlands far B8 4,433 4,680 - -
India HE 17,678 32,208 - -
Korea 7% B 10,288 9,040 - -
Egypt 2 & 2,246 4,022 - -
Indonesia E1fE 13,406 11,329 - -
Australia B 134,901 10,092 - —
Others HAh 60,959 27,249 - -

350,043 263,523 498 2,456
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments. Wit ERBEETRESRMIA-
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GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. W RoHER (&)

(continued)

Information about major customers EREXrEEFZER
Revenues from customers of corresponding years RERFEEASEEAKZS
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the 10% 2B FWmmMT

Group are as follows:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET

Customer A (Note 7 and 3) PR (Ka1k3) - 51,464

Customer B (Note 2) BPZ (Kit2) 134,901 -

Notes: BT -

1. Revenue from telephones and related equipment. 1. REEBFEREERE W

2. Revenue from B2B cross-border e-commerce and 2. REEEHEEBERETHR
payment business. WEENE S A&

3. No information on turnover for the current year is 3. ARZEREFPHAKEHZEC
disclosed for these customers since it contributed less T—tF+_A=1+—HIHF
than 10% to the Group's revenue for the year ended B2 W Em D 10% - B B
31 December 2017. BEEANFEEEBE AR

8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. Hib AR W=
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET

Interest income on bank deposits THERZMEWA 1 6

Management fee income EEEFEMU\ - 85

Net foreign exchange gain BE W U 2 F 5B 537 -

Dividend income P B HA 6,066 11,421

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B AR 2 W 3,314 -

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale &Rt HERE ~ s

investments 1,564 -
Sundry income MIEWA 250 368
11,742 11,880
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e M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

9.

10.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
— bank loan

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Directors’ emoluments

Other staff costs:
— Salaries
— Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes
— Other benefits

Total other staff costs

Total employee benefits expense

Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of goods sold and services
recognised as an expense
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Net foreign exchange loss
Share-based payment expense

Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary &5 — B Q8 2 &8

9. MBRA

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
UTEEBEZFE
—iRITEE 86 14
10. X FEEFiE
FABEBTRNBATSER
EHC
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
EEME 2,218 2,060
Hih 8 TR A :
— & 6,296 11,385
— R K%E F 58I 50
287 357
—E b 1g F 186 888
HE#i B TRAEE 6,769 12,630
EERFF B 8,987 14,690
= RN BN & 950 950
B EE M KRR KA
R AN T 318,290 218,370
ME - -BENMREBZITE
769 989
EUNE ZERFOAEEIE = 156
R EEFE - 440
VAR 0 A E /2 S 3 X2 676 12,450
= 2,185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TE R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' MNEEZKEEMSE
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ENSENTEREZ M
directors were as follows: mr
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM &
For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bz-F—-tH&+=A
=+—HLEFE

Other emoluments

A&

Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other benefits Share-based

benefits scheme payment Total
Fees HeR BHEF SRBE emoluments
ik Hi &R EMR  ERZAR kA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT THERT THERT TER

Executive directors — HTEZ
Mr. Malcolm Stephen  Malcolm Stephen

Jacobs-Paton Jacobs-Paton & 4 - 1,380 - - 1,380
Mr. Wang Zhen Dong  THREX4E - 420 18 - 438
Independent BUHHTEE

non-executive

directors
Ms. Lu Bei Lin [3E3 5" 140 - - - 140
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu Thomas FiE&4 4 140 - - - 140
Mr. Man Yuan wE & 120 - - - 120

400 1,800 18 - 2,218
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AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' MNEEREEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE-_FT-X<"F+=H
=t+—HIFE
Other emoluments
Hivile
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits  Share-based
benefits scheme payment Total
Fees ek BRAER BB A emoluments

e HbEN  HEEX  ERIAX Lk
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TR TAL TR TARL TAR

Executive directors ~— HTEE
Mr. Malcolm Stephen  Malcolm Stephen

Jacobs-Paton Jacobs-Paton £ £ - 1,335 - - 1,335
Mr. Wang Zhen Dong  THRE X4 - 270 13 - 283
Ms. Wang Yan (Note (i) TH&+ (#2()) - 40 2 - )
Independent BUFHTEE

non-executive

directors
Ms. Lu Bei Lin BEEHRLL 140 - - - 140
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu Thomas Z/&2E %4 140 - - - 140
Mr. Man Yuan mEEE 120 - - - 120

400 1,645 15 - 2,060
Note: Kt -
(i) Resigned on 29 April 2016 () RZE—R"FMNAZ=TAN
HEHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services in
connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.
The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

The Group currently has no title as the chief
executive.

None of the directors waived any emoluments
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, one (2016: one) was
a director of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2016:
four) highest paid, non-director and non-chief
executive individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes

Fre MEAMRET
BRE N SR

MNEEREENE (&)

(a) ESEM <= (4)

EXFRITE F H H
TEHEAEAARARRAE
B =550 B AT I AR
75 8O F BN o = SO R B S 3k
ATEFNFHEZEH
HERSARBIZESMEMR
AR 75 0 3 B

N &8 B B 1T AR AL
—Bie

BEEENEHE_T—t
FT+_A=t—HBHILFE
MEEAMES (ZFT— X
FME) o

(b) EEM =

EAEBEREEaHNE 2
ATER —FB(ZE—RX
F—R)AAXARARZE
E-HMEeHE A EXEE
ZEBFR-HEHBHMNE(ZF
—ARE NEZ)BREHIEE

ERFEBITRABAL
ZBEmT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TAT

3,682 2,907

54 280

3,736 3,187
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued)

11.

EEREEME (&)

(b) BEME (4)

2017 2016
No. of No. of
employees employees

BEAH BEAH

Their emoluments were within ~ BZ S BRI T&HE

the following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L%
1,500,000/ 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2016: Nil)

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax: BVERT 18 -
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —EEFEH

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for both years.
PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% for both years. No provision for
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 as the PRC subsidiaries did
not generate any assessable profits during the years.
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12.

FR-AEELEFATFAESSL
EEESHFATINME A
ARSI E B NBE R Z R
SERBREE (ZF—RF:
) o

B <t
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR
497 130

FEEMNGHIREMEFE 2
i 5T SR B A HE T X 16.5%
AE-PENEARRKRESFE
BI25% 2 HMEHRTELE
SR Y ERBE T —+F
F—F—-—R"E+t-_HA=+—H
1 AF B b P AS B
e RE ST BN B QAW E



12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

12.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at the domestic income tax
rate of 16.5%

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses previously
not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recongised

Effect of different tax rates of
PRC subsidiaries

Tax charge for the year

DIVIDENDS

B 35 Bl 5 18

1R 2N 1 P15 T R
HEZBIE
RS =T REH0R
M MBEE
B LTI
ZWAZ BB E
A RHER 2 TIEE B
LB

B LA 1 7 SRR

Z IR EE

A B B B A B[R R
ZE

$16.5%

AREEBIAS

13.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2017, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period

(2016: Nil).

FiEH < (8
AEEREAXHBREAES

Emermkak B HWEE
ZEERINR
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
(216,587) (52,222)
(35,737) (8,617)
36,581 9,728
(180) (882)
1,932 3,122
(1,841) (2,419)
(258) (802)
497 130
R E
@i_z t¢+ H +—
s Eﬁ¢%%i$MXﬁﬁ
mﬁ?&ﬂﬂ —E—R
FiaE) o
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AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

14.L0SS PER SHARE 14. 8RE1E
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per RRARBEBEABRBGEERELRR
share attributable to the owners of the Company is BSEE B IORIBE U TEEE

based on the following data:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Loss E#E
Loss for the year attributable to ARAESREARREE
owners of the Company for EEZARBES A
the purpose of basic and FEAE FNE 1B
diluted loss per share (217,084) (52,352)
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Number of shares RHEER
Weighted average number of ARstEERER
ordinary shares for the purpose of &8 2 & @A hniE
basic loss per share (Note) FE g (B aE) 15,215,731 15,215,731
Note: Bt it -
The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for the HREREEREEERAAGES
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, as the effect of RESEERE T ETEAEN  HE
the share options was anti—dilutive and was not included in EZE—tFRZZE-RETZHA
the calculation of diluted loss per share. ST RLFEsERERARESE

B EARR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% BERRKRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and
Improvement equipment
HEME & - Total
#1 KERRE mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET
Cost [N
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF
—H—H 1,503 1,507 3,010
Additions NE - 838 838
Exchange realignment [ X % - (64) (64)
At 31 December 2016 R_TE—RF
and 1 January 2017 + E‘I— H
R_Z—+F
—)EJ H 1,503 2,281 3,784
Exchange realignment BE 5 5 - 45 45
Disposal of subsidiaries HE M B E
(note 35) (H1i#35) - (1,500) (1,500)
At 31 December 2017 R_ZE—+%F
+ZRA=+—H 1,503 826 2,329
Accumulated RIHE
depreciation
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF
—H—H 249 90 339
Provided for the year REZEB 526 463 989
At 31 December 2016~ M=F— A%
and 1 January 2017 T-A=t+—~H
E=Z—+t%F
—H—H 775 553 1,328
Provided for the year REERB 526 243 769
Exchange realignment B 5, o8 2 - 8 8
Disposal of subsidiaries & BT B A A
(note 35) (K17#35) - (274) (274)
At 31 December 2017 RZFE—tF
+ZA=+—H 1,301 530 1,831
Carrying amounts EREE
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+%F
+ZA=+—H 202 296 498
At 31 December 2016 R=T— X%
+=A=+—H 728 1,728 2,456
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the
term of the lease, or
5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 15% - 20%
equipment

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

15. ¥ -BERSKE (&)

LAt BE RREEEB RN
TERNBEREAERE:

HEMEKE RHEFHNL

AFE (UAEE
HAEE)

FEM-EER 15% F20%

R
16. T HERE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Unlisted fund investment, FEMESKRE:
at fair value EZAVE - 14,140
17. DEPOSITS 17. 8¢
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Deposits with the Stock Exchange B PR &
— Compensation fund —fEES 50 50
_ Fidelity fund ~ERES 50 50
— Stamp duty deposit —HERZS 5 5
Contribution of guarantee fund ENEERREE
paid to Hong Kong Securities BRARI([BEBEHE])
Clearing Company Limited BREASHK
("HKSCC") 50 50
Admission fee paid to HKSCC ENBEEHEELHEE 50 50
205 205
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. BB 5 IR K H L FE WL
=
FIE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Trade receivables arising from BHERHEEEBZ
the ordinary course of business of AEXBRAEELED
dealing in securities transactions: JEWE SR
— Cash clients -BexP 16,465 689
— Clearing house —EE M - 157
16,465 846
Trade receivables from other Hih BEXBEIE
ordinary course of business, EENEWRE SRR
except for business of dealing BHEXHEEED
in securities transactions B SN) 19,214 27,590
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts & : RERE - (156)
19,214 27,434
Deposits in brokerage firms NS RN i 20,540 53,553
Deposits, prepayments and e TBREIEREAM
other receivables JE Wk I8 8,931 8,969
Total trade and other receivables JEWE 5 Bk K HoA
J& WK IR 42 58 65,150 90,802
Trade receivables arising from the business R EEERELECRWE
of dealing in securities 2 MR
The Group seeks to maintain tight control over its N B SR ER S 1 H R Y m
outstanding trade receivables and has procedures and ZIERESGESR WHRBET R
policies to assess its clients’ credit quality and defines HEFAHEEPNEEERIN
credit limits for each client. All client acceptances EAEEEPHEERTE EHR
and credit limit are approved by designated approvers EFPFHN—UEEREERSEY
according to the clients’ credit worthiness. HETEHABRBERE P HE
BEH -
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e M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Trade receivables arising from the business
of dealing in securities (continued)

The normal settlement terms of trade receivable from
clients and clearing house arising from the ordinary
course of business of securities brokerage services
are two trading days after the trade date.

Trade receivables due from cash clients are secured
by clients’ securities, which are publicly traded
equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The fair
values of the securities as at 31 December 2017
were approximately HK$186,719,000 (2016:
HK$124,121,000). As at 31 December 2017 and
2016, all balances were secured by sufficient
collateral on an individual basis. All trade receivables
from cash clients are neither past due nor impaired as
at 31 December 2017 and 2016 and the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the amount are
recoverable. Cash client receivables which were past
due but not impaired bear interest at interest rates
by reference to Hong Kong prime rate plus certain
basis points based on management’s discretion.

In addition, the Group has a policy for determining
the allowance for impairment of trade receivables
without sufficient collateral based on the evaluation
of collectability and aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgement including the
creditworthiness, collateral and the past collection
history of each client.

In determining the recoverability of the trade
receivables, the Group considers any change in the
credit quality of the trade receivables from the date
the credit was initially granted up to the reporting
date and the fair values of the collateral held.
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1. ERE SRR H At FEIR

FIH (#)

HSEEXRBELEZEWRE
Z R ()

RNESRELRB 2B EEHB
BEREENEBREPEGEEM
BEORFTNEEEERRRS
FHIEMERS A -

ERFRERFPNESERUNE
FRES (BREELAFESR
ZLETMBRABEBSF)EETF-BSH
RZE—+tF+_A=+—H
B A FE# A186,719,0007 T
ZE—XF:124,121,000%
L) RZEBE—+tEFR=-_ZT—X
F+-—A=+—H FE&#HH
ZENEERFZ ZTEMAmER
H-RZE—LFRZT—RF
+ZRA=+—H -FEEIRSE
XEPZESERRRERHITE
BE REARBEERE %F
FRIEA] T UL - B 6 818 I R
BrRERRBEEEFPZENRIH
EREEL2ERBEREERFE
ATEZAEMEETE -

SO REEZRBRE  REY
A] Y B 1 R B S B BR SR BR e
hEEENHE (BREERE
P2 EHam ke EURE L
R)BEARREHACERBNE
Y 5 R SR (E B 4

8 7 MR BB 3K 2 Mg
PR A EE B IRE HER
AR BELERANEESH
ERMIEEEER AR
Q2 AT 2 FARD -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Trade receivables arising from the business
of dealing in securities (continued)

No allowances for impairment loss on trade
receivables has been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Trade receivables arising from other
businesses

The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90 days
to its customers.The following is an aging analysis of
the trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) presented based on invoice dates at the end
of the reporting period:

0 - 30 days TE=+H
31 - 60 days =+—ZX+H
61 — 90 days AT—ZNATAH
Over 90 days NA+HBUE

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$4,104,000 (2016: HK$10,506,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss, as the Group considered such balance could be
recovered based on historical experience. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

1. ERE SRR H At FEIR

FIH (#)

HEEEXRBELECRKRE
Z R ()
BE-_T—tHFT-_A=1—
FIEFE BERERE SRR
RBREBEBEHE(ZF—X
FE) o

Hith ¥ BEE2RREZ R

E
TA

AEBETEFF30290H 2
SEH - EWE SRR (HKR
REB) NREHHERFBRE
HRAMEINZIREDWT

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiER TR
13,955 15,078
1,408 8,208

- 763

3,851 3,385
19,214 27,434

AEBREWNEMFEFPAE
AHEERFZEEERYTA
REZEBEFPZEERB -FFPE
SBHEERBESFRIMR -

AEBECRKREZEREHE
FBRMEEX &4,104,0007 7T
—ZF— X% :10,506,000/% 7T )
2 W EIE I ERIERRE A
HA B 4% 360 HA 1B 7K 5 (3] 30 42 5h ot
ELREBEERE REALRSE
ERAE REATLR EHLE
AR LAUR ] o A £ [ N £ B Ut
LREBITFTETMIEER-
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e M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Trade receivables arising from other
businesses (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that were
past due at the end of the reporting period but not

1. ERE SRR H At FEIR

I ()
HibXBEE 2RBRRE SR
(&)

RBEHRE BHERREZ
BHRWERT 2 RE&EDTNT

impaired was as follows:

Overdue by: B H -
0 — 30 days TE=1+H
31 - 60 days =+—ZXTH

Over 60 days ANTBMNRE

Movement of impairment loss recognised:

Balance at the beginning F Y45 ER
of the year

Impairment loss recognised RARFE D #R
during the year BIEEE

Amounts written off as
uncollectible

Balance at the end of the year FIREER

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables which have
cash flow problem. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

No allowances for impairment loss on trade
receivables has been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$156,000).
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ESE: 7 QEINIO i s P k-t

2017 5016
HK$'000 HK$'000
7 FisT
253 7,121
- 832
3,851 2553
4,104 10,506
B e RO (5 18 2
2017 5016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FbT
156 ~
- 156
(156) ~
- 156

RERERRERESAHEL
BRI E 2 BUE 5 R - AN &
8] 3 4 L F AR RS A R
Hh e

HE_Z2—+tF+=-_A=+—
BEFEE BMEREKRESER
BRREBBEREE (T — X
% :156,000/87T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES 19. BB X
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
0 - 90 days TENTH 38,683 12,331
91 - 180 days nA+—=Z=—aN+H 9,017 3,720
181 — 365 days —BNT+—Z&
—AANTHHAH 140,760 153,015
188,460 169,066
Less: allowance for doubtful debts & : RER & & - -
188,460 169,066
The loan receivables were repaid in accordance FEWE R B IR BE W E 2K
with the terms of the loan agreements and all loan REA FTERKERAIN—F
receivables are recoverable within one year. AU E o
As at 31 December 2017, the effective interest rates RZZE—+F+=ZA=+—8"
on the Group's loan receivables is approximately RAEEBERKER ERFRE
10.00% (2016: 9.89%) per annum. A B10.00% (ZF —RXF:
9.89% ) °
At the end of the reporting period, there is no loan PR & AR - AN 5 B LA & R AT
receivables which are past due for which the Group RABEEERE OHRERE
has not provided for impairment loss. e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

20. BILL RECEIVABLE DISCOUNTED WITH

FULL RECOURSE/ADVANCE DRAWN ON
BILL RECEIVABLE DISCOUNTED WITH
FULL RECOURSE

The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90
days to its trade customers. The following is an
ageing analysis of bill receivable discounted with full
recourse at the end of the reporting period:

0 - 30 days TE=+H

Bill receivable discounted with full recourse and the
advance drawn on bill receivable discounted with
full recourse will be derecognised when the banks
received cash from the customers. On derecognition
of bill receivable discounted with full recourse, the
difference between their carrying amounts and the
cash received by the banks is recognised in profit or
loss.

As at 31 December 2017, the Groups does not held
any advance drawn on bill receivable discounted with
full recourse. As at 31 December 2016, the interest
on the Group’s advance drawn on bill receivable
discounted with full recourse is charged at 3.71%
per annum.
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20. i A 2 EERE ZEWE

REE FAXNEEZEE
FRECEWNRARE 22

=h
TA

AEBRTEZEPZEEH
R=TENTH -FBAMEEZE
BEREZERWMAZTERN®RSE
HIE A RE 2 RE DT -

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TAET
- 941

MEE2EEREZBWEERE
BREXZEMAEEMERE
ZRWMBAZRE ZBRTIRNE
TTIEE P i W B 38 & B 4% 1 T
R ML HERMA 2 HERE
ZEWBEIRERR - HEREER
RITAKBI 2 HENEZRTIRN

B ER -

RZZE—tF+ZA=+—8"
rEEMERERIERNHNEE2A
BREZEWANRER 2B
RZZE-—RF+ZA=+—8"
AEBEBIWNEZEHEREL
FEWEBE I B 2 B RIKL3.71%
ZEMEFF R -
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22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

21.

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, R &# £ M 2 A E

at fair value b/ L[

Fair values are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices.

Included in equity securities listed in Hong Kong
above at 31 December 2016 is the Group's
investment in GreaterChina Professional Services
Limited (“GreaterChina”), a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands, with a carrying amount of
HK$149,120,000. The investment represented a
4.8% holding of the ordinary shares of GreaterChina
and more than 10% of the Group's total assets at
31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2017, no
information on single investment is disclosed since
no single investment contributed more than 10% of
the Group’s total assets.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Segregated accounts

From the Group’s ordinary business in provision of
brokerage and related services, the Group receives
and holds money deposited by clients in the course of
the conduct of the regulated activities. These clients’
monies are maintained in segregated bank accounts
at market interest rates. The Group has recognised
the corresponding accounts payable to respective
clients. As at 31 December 2017, the segregated
accounts with authorised institutions in relation to its
brokerage business totaled HK$15,390,000 (2016:
HK$11,453,000).

House accounts

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the
Group and bank deposits at variable interest rate
with original maturity of three months or less.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s certain bank
deposits of approximately HK$251,000 (2016:
HK$222,000) denominated in RMB were placed with
banks in the PRC. The remittance of these funds
out of the PRC was subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

22.

KEEERE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
68,661 240,486

RFEDZENGHRBRZEAN
BmMET-

Att%—:“—ﬁiﬁf:ﬂ
=+ BZ2BEBLETRAES
BREAEENZEZEZXRER
ANRI([EE] —HEARHEES
HEaIMKIZzZRAR)ZE&E "
BREE A& %9149,120,000/8 JT °
ZIEEHERNBEBEEELNLIEY%
TEREBRAASEER S
—RNET+T-_A=+—"HH@EEE
210% N —_ZE—+F+ = A
=+—HB BHARBIEE—RER
BMEAREE 2 BEE®I0% I

BEBEE—IKE2ER-
HEeRBITEER
BYRF

AR BERMHEL R EHE RS
MEEEHR AEEEETT
XREEHHERRALFTERP
FHREHRIE - ZFE P HRKIA
BHSNERBLRITEPLR
E-AEEHCHEABRNEEFH
ERNER-R_T—+F+=
A=Zz+—HB BBEEXHRNR
ARBNBEYRPESHRERAR

15,390,000 7T ( =& — /N F =
11,453,000 7T ) °

BERF
ReRIRTERBRREASEM

BEZHR2ERFTR=MAH 3k
T ERHZ )2 BRITIER -

R-_FE—+tF+_-_A=+—8"
NEE AE#251,0008 7T A A
REAEZEFTFROER(ZZ
— 7% 222,000 L) HEER
FRZIET - BHEESEDRF
B ZE & <F P B BN B i 2 SN E
EFIFRIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables arising from
the ordinary course of business of
dealing in securities transactions:
— Cash clients
— Clearing house

Trade payables from purchase of
goods arising from other ordinary
course of business, except for
business of securities dealing
in securities transactions

Other payables and accrued charges

23.ENESZRIAREMEN

Trade payables arising from the business of
dealing in securities

The trade payables balances arising from the ordinary
course of business of securities brokerage services
are normally settled in two trading days after the
trade date except for the money held on behalf of
clients at the segregated bank accounts which are
repayable on demand. No aging analysis is disclosed
as, in the opinion of directors of the Company, an
aging analysis does not give additional value in view
of the nature of this business.
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MIE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
RBEHERXHGEEEB 2
FEEGBEFT
EENENESERZN:
-BexP 15,390 12,202
—EEFR - 94
REMIEEER
BHERXGRZES
BEEEZBKRIN) BIED
BEERMEAN
BB 5 BRI 28,532 30,028
HmERRIEREER 8,259 18,206
52,181 60,530

ESREREEHLEEXEHB
BRMEENENE SRR —
BMRRXZEHMEMERSZ B A
BE HEREPRBIRITEP
REZERARBTEE -ARAK
RAEZER R EREHLE
fRie DT AL E|ERSME(E - WAL E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HREMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) . ENEZRAREMES
FIE (#|)

Trade payables arising from other businesses HhEBMEENESNES
R

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables REMERR REZBHRZEN

presented based on the invoice dates at the end of BOHBRRZEERDMZFNNT

the reporting period:

2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
THER FHET
0 — 30 days TE=1+H 9,203 12,676
31 - 60 days =+—ZX+H 6,317 8,867
61 — 90 days ANT—ENTH 1,386 8,098
Over 90 days N+BNUE 11,626 387
28,532 30,028
The credit period on purchase of goods ranges from BEEEmEEHNTF=1THZE
30 to 60 days. AT He
24.BANK LOAN 24. RITER
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FHAT
Secured fixed-rate bank loan BEMFEEMERITER 1,535 —
Scheduled payment terms of RITERZFTEIERK
bank loan contain a repayment BRABEEE
on demand clause (shown under ERERZEK
current liabilities): (FIARBEE) :
Within one year —F RN 656 -
More than one year, but within FEE—FENHEBAMRE
two years 698 -
More than two years, but HBEMFENBBERT
within five years 181 -
More than five years R 8 T F - -
1,535 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

24. BANK LOAN (continued)

24,

As at 31 December 2017, the effective interest rate
of the bank loan is 3.24% (2016: Nil) per annum.
The bank loan is denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank loan was
guaranteed by a personal guarantee from a director

of a subsidiary.

25. SHARE CAPITAL

25.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0003 each

Authorised:

At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 and

31 December 2017

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 and

31 December 2017

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 26.

Y

R_E-~5-A-8
ZE-RETZAET-R
TEtE-f-HR-F-tE
+-A=1-8

BRIRME.

R-E-~5-A-8
ZE-RETZAZT-B
TEtE-f-HR-E1E
+-A=1-H

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on
4 May 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to eligible persons.

Under the Scheme, the Company’s board of directors
may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible
persons (including directors and employees) to

subscribe for the Company’s shares.
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Number of
Ordinary
Shares Amount
LERYE ¢8
HK$'000
TEn
2,000,000,000,000 600,000
15,215,731,320 4,564
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The exercise price of the share options under the
Scheme is determined by the directors, and must
be at least the higher of: (a) the average of the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the relevant
date of offer of the share options; (b) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the relevant
date of offer of the share options, which must be
a business day; and (c) the nominal value of the
Company's shares.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Company's
shares in issue from time to time. The total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the share options granted to any individual under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant of the share options must
not exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue.
The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing from the date of adoption of
the Scheme, after which no further share options
shall be granted but the share options which were
granted during the life of the Scheme may continue
to be exercisable in accordance with their terms
of issue and the provisions of the Scheme shall in
all other respects remain in full force and effect in
respect thereof. Share options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during the period as the board of directors
may determine in granting the share options, but
in any event not exceeding ten years from the date
of grant. Share options granted under the Scheme
must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer.
Upon acceptance, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant of
the share option.

26. BB BERZHRZR

2 (i)

A Bl ERETEERES
BE YAELRUTESE:
() EEFAABERERL B A
hTEZEXBERBIAEHE®RE
RIGHZ AR AR W H
E:(b)FEBERERLAHN
BMXABEHRERBLZAR
AR THE LAV BRE?
B M(o)ARRR D 2 H{E -

RIEZ AT & R AR aE A H Ath
BRERE FTERD M ERTT
2 B N1’ T
BhrzaaBEERETEHAB
KRR PTREEITRMD30% °
REZEREREHBEBHZEM
+ @ ABEA - ITERIEZA
B 2 AN B A fa] H Ath B IR B AT
ZMEMATETERE (B1F
B 2TERERITEZE
RE)MBETRETETZRG
RE - TAIBBANAEEITR
M1% c#Z =t 8l B &M H H e
T FEAMABR - Rz HEE
AN e BRI R ZE
SRR EBREDARE
HEBITIRREE T AT Mk
B EEMBAMBER
A E+ BN - B R
ETeRLERENMAEZ
HEATAEEREZTE 2
KT LAFT (0 - M Lt BRRE AR 12 1A
BARNHTESHBEBELHBRAR
AT FA-BREBEZAEERLZE
KEERELHBBET TN
HAEN RENE AR ARE
MARB XM VETIERBERE
It 2 (B -
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 26. LR AERB2ARZR

(continued)

At 31 December 2017, the number of shares in
respect of which share options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was
1,960,372,600 (2016: 1,960,372,600), representing
approximately 12.88% (2016: 12.88%) of the
Company's shares in issue at that date.

The following table discloses the details of the
Company’s share options and the movements during
the year ended 31 December 2017:

Exercise
Price
Category Date of grant per share  Exercise period Notes
g3 RLAH BRATRE EH i3
Directors 10.12.2014 HK$0.1780  10.12.2014-9.12.2020 (b)
g% ZT-RETZATAE 01780Fn  —E-MET-ATAZ
ZRCTETZANA
Employees and
consultants 7.10.2013 HK$0.0415  7.10.2013-6.10.2018 (@)
5 RER ZE-ZETAER oSBT —E-ZFTALAE
ZE-N\ETARA
10.12.2014 HK$0.1780  10.12.2014-9.12.2020 (c)

“E-ME+-BTR 017803 —E-MET-ATRE
ZEIEETZANA

19.2016 HK$0.0760  1.9.2016-31.8.2018 (d

“E-R"ENR-H 0076031 —E-~ENA-BE
“E-\ENAZ1-H

Exercisable at the end of the year

REGRTFAE

Weighted average exercise price

MEFETEE
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2 (i)

RZE—+F+_A=+—8"
BIEZTEREMERITHEZ
BREMPEZBROHDEE B
1,960,372,6000% (=& — /R4 :
1,960,372,6000% ) ' {5 A 2 &
Rz B 2B BITRNA12.88%
TE—RNF:12.88%) °

TREBRE-T—LF+=
A=+—BILFENZAAF
W REAED:

Outstanding Outstanding
at 1.1.2017 at 31.12.2017
RZZ-t&  Exercse during R-B-t&
-B-H theyear ~ TZA=T-R
AT ERff WA
146,800,000 - 146,800,000
62,652,600 - 62,652,600
240,920,000 - 240,920,000
1,510,000,000 - 1,510,000,000
1,960,372,600 - 1,960,372,600
1,889,364,600

HK$0.095 173 1T N/A HK$0.09517 1T




26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The following table discloses the details of the
Company’s share options and the movements during
the year ended 31 December 2016:

Category
g3

Directors

g%

Employees and
consultants

EERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

Date of grant
REAH

10.12.2014
“E-mETZA+H

7.10.2013
“E-=F1+AtH

10.12.2014
“E-WETZA+H

1.9.2016
—E-7ENA-H

Exercisable at the end of the year

REGRT PR

Weighted average exercise price

MEFETEE

Outstanding

Exercise at 1.1.2016
Price  Exercise RZB-RE

per share  period Notes -A-H
SRORE GRH it HATE

HK$0.1780  10.12.2014-9.12.2020 (b) 146,800,000
0178081 —E-EEF-AfAHZ
“ECEFTZANA

HK$0.0415  7.10.2013-6.10.2018 (a) 62,652,600
0041551 Z—F-Z£+AtRE

“E-\E+ARH
HK$0.1780  10.12.2014-9.12.2020 ) 240,920,000
0178081 Z—E-EE+-AfAZ

“ECEFTZANA
HK$0.0760  1.9.2016-31.8.2018 (d) -
00760%T Z—E-~ENA-A%E

“5-\ENAZ1+-A

26. LB HBEEZ HR2R
Z ()
A=+—BLEFERZARFA
RG22 4 P 2

Outstanding
Granted at 31.12.2016

during the RZB-RE
year  TZAZt-8
R BRI
- 146,800,000

- 62,652,600

- 240,920,000

1,510,000,000 1,510,000,000

450,372,600

1,510,000,000 1,960,372,600

HK$0.15907% 7T

1,853,860,600

HK$0.07607 1T HK$0.09517 1T
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Notes:

(a) The options granted are fully vested at the date of
grant.

(b) Out of the 405,400,000 options granted on 10
December 2014, a total of 126,800,000 options are
vested in 5 tranches as to (i) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2015 up to 9 December 2020; (i) 20%
exercisable from 10 December 2016 up to 9 December
2020; (iii) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2017
up to 9 December 2020; (iv) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2018 up to 9 December 2020; and (v)
20% exercisable from 10 December 2019 up to 9
December 2020; and a total of 278,600,000 options
are exercisable from 10 December 2014 up to 9
December 2020.

(c) Out of the 862,600,000 options granted on 10
December 2014, a total of 507,200,000 options are
vested in 5 tranches as to (i) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2015 up to 9 December 2020; (i) 20%
exercisable from 10 December 2016 up to 9 December
2020; (iii) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2017
up to 9 December 2020; (iv) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2018 up to 9 December 2020; and (v)
20% exercisable from 10 December 2019 up to 9
December 2020; and a total of 355,400,000 options
are exercisable from 10 December 2014 up to 9
December 2020.
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Notes. (continued)

(d) The options granted on 1 September 2016 are fully
vested at the date of grant and exercisable from 1
September 2016 up to 31 August 2018.

No share option is exercised during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, share
options were granted on 1 September 2016. The
fair value of the options granted on that date
determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model
was approximately HK$11,023,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, share
options were granted on 10 December 2014. The fair
value of the options granted on that date determined
using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model was
approximately HK$15,966,000. The significant inputs
and assumptions to the models were as follows:

26. BB BERZHRZR

7 ()
izt (&)

@ R-T-—AFAA-BEBZ
B A HE BB BB R B
B LNA-FE-AFAA-
AZE-F-NENA=T—A
TeE

HE_Z—+tFER_ZT—RF
+-A=+—BI-FE WET
155 HE A 4 o

HE_ZTZ—XXF+-A=+—
AEFE - BEREER-F
—ANFNLA—BELE -R&H
FEHzEREZ AFEERZ
HAETERABET OB
11,023,000/ 7T °

REE-_ZZ—WOF+=A
=t+t—HEFE AR2ER=
T-NE+-_A+BERHER
E-RZABRLDZERENRF
BEXRABANE -FRATEEE
EEXFTE 4/515,966,000%8
T RABRRNZEREERBR
LS

10 December 1 September

Weighted average share price T RE
Exercise price THE
Expected volatility T8 B 1R
Expected life BHIF

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

BRER M X

B B

2014 2016
“E-mE ZE-KF
+=A+H NA—H
HK$0.175/& 7T HK$0.075/8 7T
HK$0.178/%8 7T HK$0.076/8 7T
34.16%-44.61% 118.00%
1-6 years & 2 years ¥
0.12%-1.46% 0.92%

0.00% 0.00%

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &g



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted any expected
change to future volatility based on publicly available
information. The expected life used in the model
has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model and the
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model require the
input of highly subjective assumptions, including the
volatility of share price. Any changes in subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

The Group recognised the total expense of
HK$676,000 (2016: HK$12,450,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 in relation to share options
granted by the Company.
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26. BB BERZHRZR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

27. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’'s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows
from financing activities.

27.

MEXBEL2EEYHR

TRFLAEEREREXD
MABEEESE SRR LIRS
By -MEXKHMELNAE
REZREMBC IRKRENR
ERAEEGEYBRRT D
BRAREXGHMELNADR

=
E=-°

Advance

drawn on

bill receivable

discounted

with

full recourse

EXME

2HERE
Bank loan ZEWERLR Total
RITEN REZER #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET TET FAET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—-—H—H - 941 941
Accrued interest JEEF B 86 - 86
Interest paid BERFE (86) - (86)
Financing cash inflow MEBREMA 2,000 2,280 4,280
Financing cash outflows B4 & H &% (465) (3,221) (3,686)

At 31 December 2017 RZT—tF

+=-A=+—H 1,535 - 1,535
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
tax losses of approximately HK$82,368,000 (2016:
HK$91,409,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in the Group’s
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$3,455,000 (2016: HK$9,817,000) which will
expire 5 years from the year of origination. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

29. OPERATING LEASE

The Group as lessee

28. IEFER 18

R EHEERE  AEEEL0
82,368,000/ 7L (ZF — /N -
91,409,000/ 7T ) 2 %t 16 E5 8 7]
HAERERKZN AR RR
i MR 2 AN A] TEOR - A b 3 8 Bt
EHREEBRRECEHIBEEE -
REBEBZAERREBES R
BEREREEFERTAFREM
2 B3 18 493,455,000 T (=&
— 755 :9,817,000/8 7T ) ° H4th
B P MR BR 4 8% o

Minimum lease payments paid under FRRFELLEHESH2

operating leases during the year: ®EME -
— Premises o /ES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
certain premises which fall due as follows:

Within one year —F A
In the second to fifth years inclusive HE_-_FZEZFERHF

(BHRERME)
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29.8X&HE
AEEEREEA
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET
2,948 4,492

RIRE & RE AEERS
TYERTINFEEE 2]
B EHE HARRKEMR
SAERERT

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
1,919 2,460
5,697 456
7,616 2,916




29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

OPERATING LEASE (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases
are negotiated for an average term of 4 (2016: 2)
years and rentals are fixed for an average of 2 (2016:
2) years.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Suncorp
Industrial Limited (in liquidation) (“SIL"), a former
subsidiary of the Company, through its solicitors
served on two wholly-owned, inactive subsidiaries
of the Company (namely, Mondial Communications
Limited ("MCL"”) and Suncorp Communications
Limited (“SCL")), statutory demands for repayment
of an amount of HK$91,177,872 allegedly due from
MCL to SIL and an amount of HK$128,785,748
allegedly due from SCL to SIL. Both MCL and SCL
denied the indebtedness allegedly due from them to
SIL as claimed in the statutory demands. By Court
Order dated 1 June 2011, the liquidators of SIL were
sanctioned to take out legal proceedings in the
name and on behalf of SIL against the Company,
MCL and/or SCL. The Company had disposed of
its entire interest in MCL and SCL in April 2014.
No legal action or winding up proceedings have
yet been taken by the liquidators of SIL against the
Company or MCL or SCL up to the date of approval
of these financial statements. Taking into account
the legal opinion of the Company's legal advisors,
the Company’s directors are of the view that there
is no sound and solid legal foundation on the part
of the liquidators of SIL to mount any claim against
the Company, and accordingly no provision has been
made in these financial statements.

29.

30.

REHE (|
AEBERAEAN (B)

EEAERRRERARERS
FHAZMERN 2B B
BT ME (2B —XF W)
MR (TR - 2R P IME
T NE e BREE

HREE

REE-_ZTT——%+=A
—t+—HIEFE FREEXEER
~El(FEF) ([FRrREXE]
HARNRRZAMB AR ) @A
HEMRAARGMEEETE
Brz2EWBAR (DB ESR
BAABRAG ([BERBAM])
RFEBAERAA([HEE
RIDxFEEATERKEGE B
SKEMATHRIA: EHEEERRA
AMER FTEEZX 291,177,872
PETT IR - BA K F5 TR T e B AT
¥ #EE ¥ 2128,785,7488 7T
I BERBALMBEANYG
BRAEACEREEERMERE
BERBALTEBNENST
NHREXCEE-RERBAC
T——FXRA—HZERDS
MEEE BB AR KT
BEECZRERRERARG B
FERBA & B AIRE S
FREBRF - ARABER-_ZE W
FMAREERBERBAMK
BNz ER - EEAN
BHRREMEBB AL FTEE
EIZBBAVYREARAHE
ERBMKFERMEIARE
TERIRLEEREF EEER
RAVERBERZEEZER A2A
REERATBEEEZBFEA
WEMEE2NE DO EEERU
HAQNFIREBR BT ERL
ROz PR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F3§ 171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR EMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE=Z—t&+=-A=+—-HALEE

31.

32.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees and subject to a monthly cap
of HK$1,500 for each employee.

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations
in other countries in which the Group operates, the
Group is required to operate defined contribution
schemes managed by the relevant jurisdictions and
to make contributions for its eligible employees.
The contribution borne by the Group is calculated
according to the regulations stated by the relevant
jurisdictions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2017 of
approximately HK$194,000 (2016: HK$482,000)
represents contributions payable to the above
schemes by the Group. At 31 December 2017, no
contribution due in respect of the reporting period
had not been paid over to the schemes (2016:
HK$2,000).

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Guarantees provided by related parties

Details of guarantees provided by the related
parties in connection with the banking facilities
granted to the Group at the end of the reporting
period are set out in note 24.
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31.

32.

3R 1K 48 R &1 &

AEERMBEEEREREER
R RGBS - %At S
BERAEEEE I DRRE
VTHEXAAEERZESHESR -
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HH - BREEZHFKADLLHER
EpBREEME <8 A HRK
FBR%1,500% 7T

REAEEEZMEZEME
RZABBMAANARD - AEEEB
RYBEBRAERERE 2R
EERFEAE UHRESEREER
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RIEEERDEERE E 2 4 P
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REZE—_ZT—+F+-_A=+—
HEFEzHxeBa Rk EMmE
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.EXRBEALRS (#)

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management

personnel

Key management personnel are the directors
of the Group. The remuneration of key
management personnel during the year was as

follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

SRR
BB 1R 12 A

AR D 75 2 2 5K

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Company at
the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Place of

incorporation

and operations
Name of subsidiary A
WEATEH Lg%

Directly held ER# 5 -

China Guoxin SunCorp Financial  British Virgin
Holdings Limited Islands
TPRACHECRARARLT RERLES

EXCEL GAINER LIMITED British Virgin
Islands

RERAEE

Class of

shares held Issued
fisRi share capital
£5 ERTRE
Ordinary Us$1
LRk Er
Ordinary 1S§10,000
LR 10,0057

(b)

BEES 25

ERZEREAEEES -
ERBEBENFARAZEHMM
T

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR
2,200 2,045
18 15
2,218 2,060

3B.ADNBEFENB AR ZFH

&

RRABFZWE R R REH

R 45

REFZFFIBAOT -

Proportion ownership
interest held
by the Company
ARTREZHEE  Principal activities
&L IEXH

2017

100%

100%

2016

100% Investment holding
REBR
100% Investment holding

REER
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL BAEALAAETEMBLAAZHF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (%)
(continued)
Place of Proportion ownership
incorporation  Class of interest held
and operations  shares held Issued by the Company
Name of subsidiary A fis ki share capital ~ ALEHEZEEE  Principal activities
WEAREH FEEEcE £5l ERfTRE ERLh IERH
2017 2016
SunCorp Group Limited British Virgin Ordinary U5$59,524 100% 100% Investment holding
Islands
XBRLEE  EER 59,524% 70 REBR
Suncorp Life Technologies Limited - Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100% Investment holding
HELEHRERAA (3 Bk 1,007 REER
Suncorp Investment Holdings British Virgin Ordinary Us$100 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands
ZERRES LBk 100%7 ALK
TALENT MILLION LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and
management
BEARLA Bk Lk 10,000% 7 RERRRER
WELL SMOOTH LIMITED British Virgin Ordinary US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Islands
XBRLEE  EER 10,000%7C REER
Indlrectly held BE#E -
SUNCORP GLOBAL LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Trading of telephones and
related products
HERRERAT B EER BT EEY G
WORLDWIDE TECHNOLOGY Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Processing and trading of
(HONG KONG) LIMITED used computer-related
components
BRETHR (BR)BRAA  BR Lk 187 _FERBBENRER
g5
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE=F—t&+-A=+—ALFE

3BARAETEMB AT 25

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (&)
(continued)
Place of Proportion ownership
incorporation  Class of interest held
and operations  shares held Issued by the Company
Name of subsidiary A fis ki share capital ~ ALEHEZEEE  Principal activities
WEAFAR FEEEcE £5 ERfTRE &L IERH
2017 2016
CASHCOW FINANCE (HK) LIMITED  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Money lending business
PREE (BB ERDR Bk Eak 10,000,000 RERK
Suncorp Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$76,000,000 100% 100% Provision of brokerage,
placing and underwriting
services
MREFARLA & LR 76,000,000 7T REAR KERAERE
BILLION MAX INTERNATIONAL Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% 100% B2B cross-border
LIMITED e-commerce and payment
business
BEERERAT B AR 1007 PEULXERETHRR
SUEY
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group BEERE LRV AEEZH
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally BARIHAEB ZEENEE
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give EEFELE-KEFTZER
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of Bl E A BB AR 2 BET SR
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. Rt
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt RERSFREAERE ZH B
securities at the end of the year, or at any time NAHEBTEMNERE S

during the year.
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34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

35.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
equity-settled of share-based payment expenses were
approximately HK$676,000 (2016: HK$12,450,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group has disposed 100% equity share of Hong
Kong Union Capital Holdings Group Limited at a cash
consideration of HK$10,000. As at 31 December
2017, the cash consideration was unsettled and the
amount of HK$10,000 was included in the Group’s
other receivables balances (note 18).

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Disposal of Hong Kong Union Capital
Holdings Group Limited (“Union Capital”)
and its subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group has disposed 100% equity share of Union
Capital (which has a subsidiary company, £ 8l#%
SERHE (EB)BRAR, a company engaged in
B2B cross-border e-commerce and payment business
in PRC) to the purchasers at a consideration of
HK$10,000. The disposal of Union Capital and its
subsidiary was completed during the year.

176 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ¥#ERIER A T

B ERFHRERS

35.

BHE_T—+tFt+HA=1T—
HIEFE AR BEMR 2 [T
B A% 72N 45 & B 2 40 /676,000
T (ZF — /X% 12,450,000/
JT) °

REBEE_ZT—+%F+ = A
T HLEFE - AEEEH
ERERBIEREEER D A
FEP R - IR 2 K (E A10,0008
TR E—+tF+H="+—
B 34 K {E10,000/ JT & & 4
R RET A& B E M E W IR
e (MF5E18) ©

k=) PN

HEFBRREREERR
NE (TR EEKB AT

REBEE_Z—+ttF+ = A
=t+—HLFE AEEERE
FEERE (HEE—HKREBR
A &R EBRE (LE)
ERAR —ERPELEED
¥HOEBERSFRAKERIA
¥BMAr)2EBRE REA
10,0008 7T © tH & R 3% K& H 1 B
NEIERFATK
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEME QA (80)
Disposal of Hong Kong Union Capital HERBRBRREREEEGR
Holdings Group Limited (“Union Capital”) AR (TRE)RAEHE R A
and its subsidiary (continued) (#&)
The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal MEBARNHEBHNEEF
were as follows: (ERUNNE
HK$'000
FHT
Consideration receivable fE WA ME 10
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment ME WE R (1,226)
Other receivables H b fE YU FKIB (162)
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS (1)
Other payables H & 1~ 5118 5,076
3,677
Release of translation reserve ERFEERD (363)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 W 3,314
Satisfied by: BB
Cash consideration receivable included in T AE A E W RIE 2
other receivables fEUER &R (E 10
Net cash outflow from disposal: HEEAZR® ML FE
Bank balances and cash disposal RITHEBEREEE (21)
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. XD A Z B AR R K 1R
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY &
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Available-for-sale investments AEEHERE - 14,140
Investments in subsidiaries Rt B AR ZIRE 178 178
178 14,318
Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments e RFEMNKIA 2,181 2,278
Amounts due from subsidiaries NS NGIE @] 275,932 469,568
Bank balances and cash RITHE R MIR S 2,597 3,660
280,710 475,506
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued charges and JE &t 2 &
other payables H b JE T 5K IB 2,936 2,463
Amount due to a subsidiary &1 — R B A &) 5kE 30,096 1,200
33,032 3,663
Net current assets REBEEFHE 247,678 471,843
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERABEE 247,856 486,161
Capital and reserves BRAR@EE
Share capital N 4,564 4,564
Reserves & 243,292 481,597
Total equity RRER 247,856 486,161
The financial statements were approved and MBBRERERZZE—N\F=H
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 “TtHREESgHERERE
March 2018 and were signed on its behalf by: HED - W THEEREREE:
WANG Zhen Dong Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
FiRE
Director Director
EE o
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves

Share  Contributed
Premium surplus
i aE AABH
HK$'000 HK$'000

36. A QA 2 BB R T KR
% (@)

ARTZHBERE
Share  Investment
options  revaluation  Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
BRERE REEMRE ZitER an
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000

Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin
At 1 January 2016 R=E-~F-F-H 57,856 522,104 9,949 - (128,922) 460,987
Profit for the year TEE T - - - - 1,042 1,042
Change in fair value on TRHEREATERS
available-for-sale investments - - - 7,118 - 7,118
Recognition of equity-settled BRNRAEETARA
share based payments BERZAF - - 12,450 - - 12,450
At 31 December 2016 and R-F-RE+2A
1 January 2017 St-BR-E-t%
-A-H 57,856 522,104 22,399 7,118 (127,880) 481,597
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (231,863) (231,863)
Reclassification adjustment for REETHHERER
the fair value changed included HHABEZATE
in profit or loss upon disposal of FYELENARER
available-for-sale investments - - - (7,118) - (7,118)
Recognition of equity-settled WIRE & EL R
share based payments BERZAR - - 676 - - 676
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tf
T-A=+-H 57,856 522,104 23,075 - (359,743) 243,292
AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF 3. BT BREESMBERR

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
27 March 2018.

EEeER_ZT-NF=A
“tEH#SLERKRENERS
PABmE-
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RESULTS E4

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-RA=t-HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
FET FHET FHET FET TER

Revenue Yz 293,408 241,171 301,514 263,523 350,043
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERM/ (BE) 10,168 (32,867) 50,919 (52,352)  (217,084)
Attributable to: THALER:
Owners of the Company KRRER A 10,168 (32,867) 50,919 (52,352)  (217,084)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 31 December

R+=R=1+-H

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
TRET TRET TRL TREL TER

Total assets BEE 129,903 75,956 681,189 655,391 423,897
Total liabilities reE (138,543) (63,403) (57,545) (62,822)  (54,356)
Net assets/(liabilities) FEE/(8F) (8,640) 12,553 623,644 592,569 369,541
Equity attributable to UNGIE 2PN

owners of the Company s (8,640) 12,553 623,644 592,569 369,541
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